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Vision
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e
We aim to be a globally recognised and
leading regional independent quality

assurance body in education and
training.
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Mission
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We safeguard the credibility of
qualifications under the Hong Kong

Qualifications Framework and facilitate
the continuous quality enhancement

and excellence of education and
training in Hong Kong and the region
through our accreditation, assessment,
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quality audit and consulting services.
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This annual report covers the reporting year from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 in the text and the financial report unless stated otherwise.
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Highlights of the Year

FEHY

HKCAAVQ speaks at Going Global 2018
FFER N Going Global 2018 & L # TR

HKCAAVQ’s Registrar was invited to present on the
accreditation of online learning programmes in the Panel
session at the Going Global 2018, themed “Global
connections, local impact: Creating 21st century skills,
knowledge and impact for society-wide good” in Malaysia.

1 BRI £ B 55 2R PR SR 287 TR Going Global 2018 -
/% TGlobal connections, local impact: Creating 21st century
skills, knowledge and impact for society-wide good | HY& 3% - -
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Executive Director of HKCAAVQ.
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Roundtable by HKCAAVQ
Council Member

FERAERENERTHRBREN

HKCAAVQ Council Member Professor James
Calleja, also the Principal and CEO of Malta
College of Arts, Science and Technology,
delivered a presentation titled “The Link Between
Qualifications Framework and Validation
Arrangements” at a roundtable session.

FFERBAEK BJames Calleja 1% » RiFERE
SEF L BRI [EFERENIELTHNEE]
BRER)ERE © Calleja IR R AK Rt A STEHEAR
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HKCAAVQ renews MoA with
Knowledge and Human
Development Authority (KHDA)

ArEREMFRERA DB RAE

HKCAAVQ renewed the Memorandum of Agreement (MoA) with Knowledge and Human
Development Authority (KHDA), UAE, after the MoA was first signed in 2015. The signing
ceremony was officiated by Dr Warren Fox (Chief of Higher Education, KHDA) & Mr Albert Chow,

#2015 BIRFE R4 » SPRBEMF B RANBRBBRFT BAFTE - RRFEHEAR
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Joint conference with FSTE on
Striving for Quality Education

FEREBESSHEHEAN
FEEE

HKCAAVQ jointly organised the Federation for
Self-financing Tertiary Education (FSTE) Annual
Conference, with “Striving for Quality Education” as

the theme.

HEREEESSHABRAMA BREEHE
REBNFEEH -

HKCAAVQ co-organises

with EDB & QFS

EEREBERBERES 2018

The EDB and the QFS jointly organised the HKQF International Conference 2018, with HKCAAVQ as the
co-organiser, in celebration of the 10th anniversary of the HKQF. The Conference, themed “QF in the Next

Decade: Quality, Progression & Recognition”, presented the QF developments in Hong Kong and selected

places around the world.

RENEBEREBRI AT  HARKEREBUERAN  TERBNELEBEEBEREH 2018
CRA] REE - BAERREEEERER ER b ER

-
B

.

HKQF International Conference 2018
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Highlights of the Year
FENY

HKCAAVQ renews MoU with QQl
T EREQQIERRRETE

HKCAAVQ renewed its
MoU with Quality and
Qualifications Ireland (QQU),
marking another important
milestone for the strong
collaboration between the

two agencies.
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Highlights of the Year
FENY

CAT Centralised Database on QR launched e
+

REEM LSS REREE FREH B R RRRBNER )

After consultation with stakeholders, the Centralised Database of
CAT information and articulation arrangements on the QR was
developed and launched.
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HKCAAVQ, QAA & British Council launch report on UK
transnational education in Hong Kong

FER - QAARREIX LI ERRESEH B R RS

After a joint review exercise of QAA-HKCAAVQ
in Hong Kong, HKCAAVQ co-organised a joint
event with the UK QAA, and British Council
HK on the publication of the report by QAA on
UK transnational education in Hong Kong.

ERESEHEERRERETRREDTEE
ITHARE TR - FFRBEQAARERX
HEeHEHARBEHBERENENE -

HKCARV G AnnuUal Event 2018 HKCAAVQ hosts Annual Event 2018
“- irild PERASFIE 2018
HKCAAVQ hosted its Annual Event 2018, themed “shaping

the future @ 10th anniversary of Qualifications Framework”,
with the EDB as co-organiser.
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Highlights of the Year
FENY

/Accreditation of Hong Kong Customs
College’s induction programmes

FRBHRERARREETEER

The Hong Kong Customs College has been granted accreditation status for its
induction programmes for Customs Officers and Inspectors. This is the second
disciplinary unit of the Hong Kong SAR Government to have its induction
programmes recognised under HKQF.

EEBAB O BEER LB RARREC ENERERENTEEAR - 2BER
TRRBBATE T 56— R R ARRERS TS EERERY -

HKCAAVQ speaks at 10th Higher Education International
Conference in Macao

HERNFETERSHSERERES

Executive Director Mr Albert Chow was one of the keynote
speakers of the 10th Higher Education International
Conference, which was jointly organised by the
Asia-Pacific Quality Network (APQN) & Macao Polytechnic
Institute (MPI). The annual conference adopted a
wide-ranging view of factors impacting on teaching and
learning, as well as focusing on development and
innovation aspects.

TAMEEEMERFPETERANREHESSHERR S  TRREREREALLE
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HKCAAVQ commissioned to study on
international experiences of self-financing
post-secondary education

HFERZET [BEZ L BENERER] R

Commissioned by EDB, HKCAAVQ completed the “Study on International
Experiences of Self-financing Post-secondary Education®. The final report
was accepted by EDB.

HEREHERER 3 [AEF HENERER] ETRE  HERS
BEHEREMN -
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Highlights of the Year
FEHE

HKCAAVQ’s Specialist Online Learning
Platform launched

FERERELBBTARE

Built on the Moodle e-learning platform, the Specialist Online Learning
Platform (SOLP) was launched. At this initial stage, a 4-week induction course
in two languages, Chinese (Cantonese) and English, has been developed.

FERHL [HEREXVLEEFE] @ B LBEEFSEIRMoodeRE
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Executive Director of HKCAAVQ elected as
one of the Directors of CBQAN

HFERARSEREANERRESHEHEREAREEEY—REXE
CBQAN held its 1st Council Meeting cum 2nd General Assembly in Ireland. During the meeting, the

first Council of CBQAN was constituted and approved. Executive Director of HKCAAVQ, Mr Albert
Chow, was elected as one of the Directors of the Network.

EHERREAEEEREARESNERBRTEANGERRE - REBEH - ¥ DRBRIA
BE-EAE FEREBERAEALIEELET—BKELR -

HKCAAVQ presents at TEQSA Conference 2018
HERR2018F EENE SR L REPEBOEHR LETAHH

HKCAAVQ delivered a presentation on “ Collaborative Cross
border Joint Quality Assurance: Pilot Exercise by Hong Kong
and UK Quality Assurance Agencies ” at the TEQSA

Conference 2018 .

ERN2018 FERNSEHEEERREZN G R L
B[ BRAESHAERAE | BB RERERRERENH
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Highlights of the Year
FENY

KSQA visits HKCAAVQ, QFS and key operators in Hong Kong
FMEERRBLBIEES -
BIEEEREHEERF = HE

Korean Skills Quality Authority (KSQA) delegation met with HKCAAVQ, and visited QFS,
Employees Retraining Board (ERB), MTR Academy and the Hong Kong Police College,
as it aimed to understand more about implementation and development of HKQF.

é?ﬁ BHRE(KSQA) BIanTER - U RIREFEENER - EEBEIR - BE
(&

FATE
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HKCAAVQ pays courtesy visit to
QA counterparts in Beijing

ArERTREERRERBETR

HKCAAVQ delegation paid a courtesy visit to CDGDC,
CSCSE, and Department of International Cooperation
and Exchanges (DICE) in Beijing. Taking the opportunity, Professional Training Workshop in
HKCAAVQ also met with the Sino-French Engineer Quality Assurance 2019
School of Beihang University to receive an update on
20195 EH ZREBEEEIITIES

collaborative education provisions in Mainland China.
The second Professional Training Workshop in

Quality Assurance was conducted. The workshop
has seen a strong demand with a good mix of local

TEBML REDHE R BT EHEERRL
(CDGDC) - s R R 0 (CSCSE) » RIKE SEE
BYEEZRRISINRERE o FEUHE - TERINEILR
MMZEMAR B AT IZAERGIE - T ARERHSINGE
ZHER -

and international participants.
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Chairman’s Message

TEFE

It gives me great pleasure to share with you our fruitful
accomplishments attained in the remarkable year of 2018/19.

Hong Kong Qualifications Framework (HKQF) celebrated its 10th
anniversary in 2018. As a long-term strategic partner of HKQF and
the Qualifications Framework Secretariat (QFS), we are glad to be
part of the development of HKQF over the past years. All along,
we are committed to safeguarding the credibility of qualifications
listed in the Qualifications Register (QR) and upholding the quality of
education and training in Hong Kong through the application of our
internationally accepted accreditation standards and practices. More
importantly, our active participation in the various referencing projects
between HKQF and QFs in other countries/regions, promotion of
HKQF and the rigorous quality assurance system began to bear
fruits. Nowadays, the credibility of HKQF receives wide recognition
in the local and international communities. HKQF has succeeded in
promoting life-long learning and continuing education which in turn
enhance the capability and competitiveness of the workforce in Hong
Kong. We owed our success to the strong foundation built by our
predecessors and the generous support from numerous stakeholders
past and present. It is our privilege that we have left the footprints
together with many stakeholders in the remarkable achievements of
HKQF.

]O Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
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We are living in an era of constant change and innovation. New ideas
and attempts to offer solutions emerge every day. Education, as a
means for cultivating values and attaining competence, plays a pivotal
role in shaping the future talents and leaders. As a quality assurance
agency, the decisions we make and the work we do have a direct
bearing to the interest of learners and the community at large. In the
days to come, HKCAAVQ would continue to engage and work with
our strategic partners and quality assurance counterparts, local and
overseas, in performing our roles amid the changing needs of the
education and training sector.

Looking ahead, we have updated our Vision and Mission statement
in adherence to our latest commitment to high quality service, growth
and innovation. On 1 October 2019, the new Strategic Plan for 2019-
2023 was released which serves to guide the future direction for
the development of HKCAAVQ. In the context of this Strategic Plan,
we aim to put more emphasis on supporting the pursuit of quality
enhancement and excellence by our operators, through developing
more initiatives and measures that could benefit the education and
training in Hong Kong.

If alone we are but one drop; together we are an ocean. We are
grateful for having our Council Members, who come from a range of
professions and bring in their wisdom and expertise, with a desire
to serve and contribute to the Hong Kong community. | would like
to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to my fellow
Council Members, who are always supportive, for their dedicated
service over the past year. My heartfelt gratitude also goes to our wide
spectrum of stakeholders, including the Education Bureau and other
government departments, sister quality assurance agencies across
the globe, specialists as well as operators. Your relentless support is
crucial to us. With the close collaboration and strong partnership, we
are confident that we could make many contributions that benefit the
vast learners. | would also like to extend my appreciation to all our
staff members at the Secretariat, who have all been diligently working
and supporting the operations and development of HKCAAVQ.

We will soon be celebrating our 30 years of success and
accomplishments in 2020. As we continue our work with our head up
high, with all your support, we look forward to achieving even more.
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Executive Director’s Report

| am deeply grateful and delighted to report on those key
accomplishments made by HKCAAVQ over the past year.

The reporting period of 2018/19 was another productive and eventful
year. With the great support of our stakeholders and dedication of
Secretariat staff, remarkable progress was made to our strategic
goals and initiatives. In celebration of the 10th Anniversary of
HKQF, the Education Bureau, Qualifications Framework Secretariat
(QFS) and HKCAAVQ jointly organised the HKQF International
Conference on 17-18 September 2018. Speaking at the two-day
Conference, themed “QF in the Next Decade: Quality, Progression
and Recognition”, were QF and quality assurance (QA) professionals
as well as leaders in the education and training sector. The speakers
shared their visions, foresights and recommendations on the future
trends of QF and QA, as well as possible impacts on the human
resources development.

]2 Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
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In regard to the international engagement, HKCAAVQ continued
its discussion and collaborations with our strategic partners in the
international QA community in areas of mutual benefits. Built on the
trust we established with the Quality Assurance Agency for Higher
Education (QAA) of the United Kingdom (UK), a joint exercise was
conducted by the QAA and HKCAAVQ for the UK’s transnational
education (TNE) provision in Hong Kong in 2018. The positive
outcome of the joint exercise demonstrated that the use of peer
review and HKQF in the HKCAAVQ's accreditation exercises and
hence the decision made could be relied upon by the credible QA
agency in the review of UK TNE. This accomplishment opened
new opportunities for HKCAAVQ to move towards establishing
mutual recognition arrangements with credible QA agencies
around the world. Moving forward, HKCAAVQ is actively looking
at the possibility for engaging in projects that could lead to more
recognition for HKCAAVQ-accredited programmes which are listed
in the Qualifications Register (QR). We strongly believe this is also of
relevance and importance to the learners in Hong Kong.

In December 2018, HKCAAVQ was invited to speak at the
International Forum for VET Statutory Institutions hosted by the
Korean Skills Quality Authority (KSQA) in Seoul, with the theme of
“Quality Assurance of Vocational Education and Training through
International Cooperation”. New collaborative opportunities with
KSQA were further discussed during the visit by KSQA to HKCAAVQ
in late March 2019. The 2-day visit was a fruitful one as KSQA met
with representatives of HKCAAVQ, QFS, Employees Retraining Board,
MTR Academy etc. These discussions facilitated the understanding
by KSQA of the roles and implementation of the HKQF in respect
of design and delivery of vocational and professional education and
training as well as the up-skilling of the workforce in Hong Kong.

On the regional front, we started extending our footprints to the
nearby Guangdong Province and Macao SAR in line with the
Greater Bay Area initiative. In support of the implementation of
the Guangdong QF, HKCAAVQ and QFS were invited to meet
and discuss with the Department of Education of Guangdong
in December 2018 and January 2019 on the engagement in
collaborative projects that would pave the way for the launch of the
various initiatives and measures underpinning the Guangdong QF.
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Executive Director’s Report

MEBEERE

In October 2018, during our visits to the University of Macau and
Macao Polytechnic Institute, representatives of HKCAAVQ and the
two higher education institutions discussed about the implications
and opportunities brought about by the Macao SAR Government’s
promulgation of a new set of guidelines accompanying the
implementation of Macao Higher Education Law effective from
August 2018. HKCAAVQ's contributions to the quality assurance
of the higher education in Macao was appreciated by the relevant
stakeholders in Macao.

On the local front, HKCAAVQ organised our Annual Event in
November 2018 jointly with the Education Bureau, aimed at
promoting the understanding and appreciation by our stakeholders
of the latest development of HKQF and in particular the launch of
the Credit Accumulation and Transfer (CAT) centralised database
on the QR. Underpinning the HKQF, the objective of this initiative by
Education Bureau is to enhance transparency and dissemination of
credit transfer information and articulation arrangements between
institutions and programmes for easy reference by learners in
Hong Kong. To upkeep the momentum, HKCAAVQ has initiated
our communication and engagement strategy and held a series
of information briefing to provide further advice and assistance to
interested stakeholders.

In September 2018, HKCAAVQ launched the new service for the
accreditation of assessment agencies for professional qualifications
in support of the Education Bureau’s initiative. This came after the
completion of the pilot projects with the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Marine Department of Hong
Kong SAR Government. In the near future, HKCAAVQ would continue
to work closely with QFS in the implementation of this initiative.

The Qualifications Assessment service of HKCAAVQ saw an
increased demand from local and overseas applicants over the
past year. The 24X7 service hours of the i-Portal and its user-
friendly interface that guides the application procedure and evidence
requirements are welcomed by applicants.

The Professional Training Workshop in Quality Assurance, as a
second offering, took place on 11-15 March 2019 and again saw an
increased demand with participants from Australia, Japan, Philippines,
Macao and Hong Kong. The 5-day workshop fostered experience
sharing in internal and external quality assurance, and on-going
engagement with QA practitioners in the region and beyond.

]4 Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
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The world is fast-changing and in this new era of innovation,
education is no exception. The advancement in technology and
proliferation of internet access have led to increasing prominence
of online or blended learning in education and training around the
globe. In response to this emerging trend and having successfully
piloted the first accreditation of an online programme, HKCAAVQ
released our new accreditation standards and associated evidence
guides effective from 1 April 2019 which also apply to the
accreditation of online learning programmes. In 2018, we have
kicked off our discussions with sister QA agencies in the Quality
Beyond Boundaries Group on this new area of quality assurance
with the aim to foster closer cooperation and facilitate exchange
of information and intelligence in the related developments and
technicalities. Our presentation at the Going Global 2018 also
highlighted some of our experience and observations in the
accreditation of online learning programmes.

Busy time flies in the blink of an eye. Much has been achieved
and, with the support from our stakeholders, we are hopeful that
more could be done in the future. HKCAAVQ is ready for new
opportunities, as well as possible challenges that we could face. We
are committed to continuous enhancement in the quality of our work,
and be proactive and responsive to new service demands. On-going
engagement with our stakeholders is crucial and always accorded
with high priority.

Looking ahead, we are excited also because HKCAAVQ will be
celebrating our 30th anniversary in 2020. At this remarkable time
in the HKCAAVQ’s history, as we look back, we must thank our
predecessors who had shared their vision in promoting the quality of
education and training in Hong Kong and contributed and laid a solid
foundation over the past three decades. In celebration of the decades
of success, there will be a number of initiatives and celebrative events
to be staged. Announcements will be made on the HKCAAVQ's
website.

Last but not the least, | would like to take this opportunity to thank
our Council Chairman and Council Members for the wise counsel and
generous support they render in all aspects of our work. My gratitude
also goes to colleagues at HKCAAVQ for their dedicated service and
strive for quality and excellence.
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The Council
TER

The Council and
its functions

FE B R

The Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational
Quialifications (HKCAAVQ), formerly known as the Hong Kong Council for
Academic Accreditation (HKCAA), was established in 1990 as an independent
statutory body to provide authoritative advice on academic standards of
degree programmes in higher education institutions in Hong Kong.

In 2007, the Council was reconstituted under the HKCAAVQ Ordinance
(Chapter 1150). HKCAAVQ took on responsibility for the vocational sector
and statutory roles as the Accreditation Authority and Qualifications
Register Authority under the Hong Kong Qualifications Framework
(HKQF) under the Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
Ordinance (Chapter 592).

HKCAAVQ provides quality assurance and assessment services to
education and training institutions, course providers and the general
public. In addition to its statutory roles, HKCAAVQ also provides advisory
and consultancy services in education qualifications and standards to
government bureaux and other organisations in Hong Kong and the Asia-
Pacific region.

HKCAAVQ is governed by its Council comprising local and non-local
members. The Council of HKCAAVQ is established under section 3 of
the HKCAAVQ Ordinance. Its Chairman, Vice-chairman and members are
appointed by the Chief Executive of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region in their personal capacity under the HKCAAVQ Ordinance.
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The composition of the Council’s membership includes members who
have quality assurance or accreditation related expertise or experience and
good standing in the field of education and training or in any industry. The
Permanent Secretary for Education or his representative and HKCAAVQ's
Executive Director are ex-officio members.

The Council

HER

¢

i

AERAGKEYABEGFREMABE
B REHE  EIIREMITEREARBE
BMEL KRG EAKNEBEHERTEL

WERSIERREAERAHE-

The functions of the Council are defined in the HKCAAVQ Ordinance (Cap 1150):

BEBFERKAL (EN50F) - AERHNBES

a Conduct accreditation tests in relation to institutions,
assessment agencies, learning programmes, qualifications
and individuals;

e Promote the methods and practices of conducting
accreditation tests;

Disseminate information on standards of learning
programmes;

Establish relationships with accreditation or QA bodies;
and education and training authorities outside Hong
Kong;

Conduct seminars, conferences and other forms of
instructional or promotional activities;

Conduct or commission research into the maintenance
or monitoring of the standards of education and of
training; and

Perform any functions outside Hong Kong with the prior
approval of the Secretary for Education.

The Council meets three times a year, i.e. in January,
May and September. Subject to section 8(1) of the
HKCAAVQ Ordinance, its work is supported by three
standing committees:

— Qualifications and Accreditation Committee (QAC)

— Finance Committee (FC)
— Personnel and Administration Committee (PAC)
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The Council

FER

Council Term KE{EHj
1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019

2018F4A1HZE2019F3A31H

VICE-CHAIRMAN
EHES:
Mr Roger Thomas Best, JP

CHAIRMAN

EE

Ir Dr Alex Chan Siu-kun, BBS
BkiR{E L, BBS

EX-OFFICIO
MEMBERS
ERME
YERENER HEREENERAR Mr Albert Chow Hing-pong (from 03.04.2018)
Deputy Secretary for Education (Representing the Permanent Secretary for Education) BES%4E (H2018E4830 1)
Mr Brian Lo Sai-hung, JP (until 16.07.2018) Mr Rex Chang Wai-yuen, JP (from 30.7.2018)
Et %L, JP (22018575168 ) BER%E , JP (H2018F7A30H )
NON-LOCAL
MEMBERS
AR L B
Professor James Calleja Ms Jane von Dadelszen Professor Zita Fahmi
Dr Bryan Maguire Professor Bjorn Stensaker
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The Council
TER

LOCAL MEMBERS
it pL &

Professor Pong Ting-chuen Mr Wilfred Wong Kam-pui, JP
ER2YR EHRWEE, P

Ms Margaret Cheng Wai-ching Ir Francis Cheng Cho-ying, MH Professor Chetwyn Chan Che-hin
gEaa+ EEREE, MH REHFHR

*
Professor Hau Kit-tai, BBS, MH, JP Professor Paul Lam Kwan-sing, SBS, JP Professor Isabella Poon Wai-yin ’ :
REERHR, BBS, MH, JP MEEHR, SBS, JP BREYER 2 R
L
Ms Edith Shih Professor Paul Tam Kwong-hang Ms Candy Tam Lai-chuen, MH ﬂ
mEREL BETHR EEEZL,MH 2
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The Council

FER

Personnel and
Administration
Committee
(PAC)

Qualifications
and Accreditation Finance

Council FFERAE Committee Committee (FC)
B = =&
(QAC) MEEES AEB AR

b v =13
ERNIEZER EEe

Ir Dr Alex Chan Siu-kun, BBS
Council Chairman

BOkiRE+ ® °
S
Mr Roger Thomas Best Chair
Council Vice chairman [ i
eSS
Prof Chetwyn Chan Che-hin ° °
BREEFHIX
Ir Francis Cheng Cho-ying P Deputy Chair
LGN Pt BlxXE
Ms Margaret Cheng Wai-ching ° Deputy Chair
BEaZt+ BlE/E
Prof Hau Kit-tai, BBS, MH, JP ° P
Local {%ﬁgﬁﬁﬁ

Members

Kithp{ & Prof Paul Lam Kwan-sing ° °
MREFRERX
Prof Pong Ting-chuen Chair °
EREHE ESE
Professor Isabella Poon Wai-yin Deputy Chair °
EEBHIX BlEE
Ms Edith Shih
HEBRE Lt ® ®
Prof Paul Tam Kwong-hang P °
ERSHE
Ms Candy Tam Lai-chuen, MH ° °
EEELt
Mr Wilfred Wong Kam-pui, JP PY Chair
| Er

20 Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications

EREBMEBEERETER



Council FERAS

Prof James Calleja

Ms Jane von Dadelszen

Non-local
Members

AR S Professor Zita Fahmi

Dr Bryan Maguire

Professor Bjern Stensaker

Deputy Secretary for Education
(Representing the Permanent
Secretary for Education)
HERENER
(BEREERERAR)

Mr Brian Lo Sai-hung, JP
E A

(until 16.07.2018)
(ZE2018%F7H16H)

Ex-officio
Members

ERRE

Mr Rex Chang Wai-yuen, JP
R LA

(from 30.7.2018)
(F2018F7 A30H #£)

Executive Director
wes

Mr Albert Chow Hing-pong
FAEFREE

(from 03.04.2018)
(4201854 A3H #E)

Qualifications
and Accreditation
Committee
(QAC)
ERRTEEZES

Finance
Committee (FC)
MEEER

Terms of reference of the standing committees can be found on HKCAAVQ website and in Appendix of this Annual Report.
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The Council
TER

Personnel and
Administration
Committee
(PAC)
AERITH
ZEg
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The Secretariat

WEE

The Executive Director, supported by two Deputies overseeing
academic accreditation and vocational and professional and
training education (VPET) accreditation, leads the Secretariat
which is the executive arm of the Council in the implementation
of its decisions, functions and policies. The Secretariat is
organised by business units supported by a number of corporate
services units. As at 31 March 2019, the Secretariat has 89 full-
time staff in post.

ORGANISATION CHART
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Council
FERXE

Executive Director

Deputy Executive Director
(Academic)
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Accreditation
T & IR %

HKCAAVQ accredits academic and vocational and professional
education and training (VPET) programmes by applying its
accreditation standards to ensure that the learning programmes and
their operators meet the minimum quality standards for recognition
under the Hong Kong Qualifications Framework (HKQF) and entry into
the Qualifications Register (QR).

Accredited programmes are placed on the QR, a publicly available
website that lists all of the quality assured programmes and
qualifications in Hong Kong, including those offered by the self-
accrediting, publicly-funded universities. Summary reports of
accreditation outcomes are published on the HKCAAVQ website to
help learners make an informed decision on their studies.

Major Developments

Joint Review with Quality Assurance Agency
for Higher Education (QAA),
United Kingdom (UK)

HKCAAVQ and QAA have a long history of cooperation underpinned
by the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU), which was last
renewed in 2019. Both agencies have committed to working together
to enhance external quality assurance in both UK and Hong Kong.
That includes seeking to strengthen cooperation in the quality
assurance of UK transnational education (TNE) in Hong Kong.

Under the provisions of MoU, QAA and HKCAAVQ undertook a
joint exercise in May 2018, involving an accreditation exercise by
HKCAAVQ and a review of the partnership between a UK university
and a local operator in Hong Kong by QAA.

The members of the HKCAAVQ accreditation panel, also the UK QAA
reviewers, with the consent of the UK university and its local operator
in Hong Kong, were able to use the information gathered through
the joint exercise to inform the QAA’s TNE review. This approach
was proven to have reduced the administrative burden on the UK
university and Hong Kong operator in respect of TNE review.

24 Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
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Following the review of UK/Hong Kong partnerships, QAA released
a report on UK TNE review in Hong Kong. It concluded that with
HKCAAVQ's peer-review panels and the use of the HKQF, QAA can
confidently rely on HKCAAVQ's accreditation decisions for UK TNE
provision in Hong Kong. And based on peer-review evaluation, it also
stated that HKCAAVQ reviews and judgements can be relied upon
for the purpose of UK quality assurance by the QAA and institutions.
This means that QAA is able to recognise HKCAAVQ accreditation
decisions, avoiding the need in the future to review UK TNE provision
that is accredited by HKCAAVQ.

Accreditation
L E R
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Accreditation

P E R

Accreditation Service for Collaborative
Programmes

Amid the positive response from the operators who have been
indicating their intention to jointly offer collaborative programmes,
HKCAAVQ has engaged in extensive desktop research, and indepth
dialogue and discussions with relevant stakeholders in developing
new service for the accreditation of collaborative programmes.
With the approval by the HKCAAVQ Council in January 2019, the
accreditation service for collaborative programmes will be launched
in October 2019. This new service is for joint programmes leading
to awards jointly conferred and delivered in Hong Kong by two
institutions as award granting bodies and operators. Both institutions
should have valid Initial Evaluation, Institutional Review, Programme
Area Accreditation or self-accrediting status. At least one of the
collaborative partners is a local operator. For non-local institution
acting as the partner institution, it should prove its self-accrediting
power in its home country/region. At this stage, the accreditation is
confined to joint programmes offered by two granting bodies.

Future Developments/Priorities

Consultancy Work in Macao

Following the promulgation of the revised Higher Education Law of the
Macao Special Administrative Region (SAR) on 8 August 2018, and
with prior approval of the Secretary for Education, HKCAAVQ was
commissioned for the provision of consultancy services to conduct
program reviews of the degree programmes of an higher education
institution in Macao for the academic year 2019/20. The program
reviews conducted by HKCAAVQ for the institution concerned are
to use the new Higher Education Quality Assurance Evaluation
Guidelines developed by the Higher Education Bureau (DSES) of
Macao.
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Academic Accreditation
£ fi7 5 &

HKCAAVQ provides an extensive range of academic accreditation ERIRE—RIHNBM T E R &
services, including accreditation of programmes offered by FE ERRE AR A R EIS+ 3R
postsecondary institutions at postgraduate, degree and sub- BRE GEAtmEREEHE (R
degree levels, and non-local learning programmes (NLP) registered EEG) (F493F) EE FERER
or exempted from registration under the Non-local Higher and HRBFMER &K (B&) IR Mk
Professional Courses (Regulation) Ordinance (Cap 493). HKCAAVQ R R ME IR RIE - FFE R
also conducts Institutional Review (IR) for institutions seeking BEERBFRG (LB
registration under the Post-Secondary Colleges Ordinance (Cap 320) (ZE3R0E)FMERMER  UREE
for degree-awarding status, and Institutional Review for institutions R 55 AL S K 22 2 T ) B B 1T B ALRT
seeking Private University Status. o

Key Figures FEHF

Comparison of Breakdown of Academic 2017/18K2018/194F & £ i
Programmes Accredited or Re-accredited in FEHEENRETE
2017/18 and 2018/19

Doctor (L7) 1§ 27 6 0
Master Degree (L6) 18 2271 10 1
Bachelor Degree (L5) 24 27 3 12
Professional Diploma (L5) & % /& 2 0
Professional Certificate (L5) B ¥ iF & 3 0
Associate Degree/Higher Diploma (L4) I+ & #3008 3 5
Professional Certificate (L4) 2 2 F &2 1 0
Diploma (L3) X /& 1 1
Certificate (L3) fF & 1 1
Sub-total &%t 29 20
Master Degree (L6) 18 £ 3 0
Bachelor Degree (L5) 24 27 8 12
Associate Degree/Higher Diploma (L4) 812+ /& & X & 6 4
Advanced Diploma (L4) & % X8 0 1
Diploma (L3) X /& 1 1
Sub-total # &5+ 18 18
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Academic Accreditation

BT E

Master Degree (L6) #8 1= £z 2 0
Certificate (L6) fF & 1 0
Bachelor Degree (L5) &4 27 6 10
Sub-total # 5+ 9 10
Master Degree (L6) 8 1+ £(1 2 1
Bachelor Degree (L5) &+ £(7 26 23
Foundation Degree (L4) Ef B2 0 1
Sub-total &+ 28 25
Total # &t 84 73
35
LPA: Local Programme Accreditation 283212375 B
30  Re-LPA:Local Programme Re acoreditation #30:ERE oLl
25 S S -~ 2018/19 S S S S = | S
20 B R . B 1 =m 1 B I B 1 | B B
15 R R R T mm 8 O mE § B B
2017/18
2017/18
10 —2017/8 2018/19 — T R B
2017/18
2017/18 -
5 R R R . I 6LPAS R
2Re-LPAs
2017/18 &
2018/19 2017/18 2018/19 ¢LPAs [ 2018/19 2017/18
ey
0 1 1Pl P
Doctor Degree Master Degree Bachelor Degree Professional Associate Degree/  Professional Certificate/  Diploma Certificate / Master Degree / Certificate  Bachelor Degree Foundation Degree
| 5ns BB 214 Diploma / Certicate (L5) Higher Diploma. Advanced Diploma X8/ & BB/ 2 218 bt g
Bt26 BEL/ARUE  BRIE/SHCE
LOCAL PROGRAMME ACCREDITATION 73272572 NON LOCAL PROGRAMME ACCREDITATION 3EZ it :27257 58
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Comparison of Breakdown of Initial
Evaluation Exercises in 2017/18 and 2018/19

Local Initial Evaluation Z<ih 212 #1252 44

Academic Accreditation

2105 5 =

2017/18R2018/194 E # %
F1EoE

2017/18 2018/19

Level 6 7~ 4k 0 0
Level 5 ERH AR 0 0
Level 4 Z5 0 4% 0 0
Sub-total &5t 0 0

Initial Evaluation for Collaborative Provision of Non-local

Learning Programmes

EWMERMRBEDLS M 2017/18 2018/19
Level 6 74K 1 0
Level 5 E R &K 1 1
Sub-total &5t 2 1
Total #& 5t 2 1
2“" /18 Level 4 Level 5 Level 6
EMK E R ENE
LOCAL
PROGRAMME
ACCREDITATION Level 4 Level 5 Level 6
AR TE 2["3/ 19 F1uf] BHG EAH
Level 4 Level 5 Level 6
23N\ o 201718 . U ¥id 1 B 1
LOCAL
PROGRAMME
/ ACGREDITATION Level 4 Level 5 Level 6
AR E 2018/19 FYLT] P31 ) P ]
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Academic Accreditation

BT E

Comparison of Number of Programme Area
Accreditation Exercises and Number of
Programme Areas in 2017/18 and 2018/19

2017/18B2018/19F EFE R
FETEEF

Programme Area Accreditation 2 & & BT &
Level 6 7

Level 5 F R

2017/18

2 (8 programme areas)
2 (BAZRIEE)

2018/19

1 (2 programme areas)

1 (QESREE)

1 (1 programme area)
1 (MEERIEE)

Total 25t

2 (3 programme areas)

2 (3EENHE)

2 (3 programme areas)

2 (3EENHE)

Comparison of Number of Periodic Review

2017/18 B 2018/19% & £ H

Exercises and Number of Programme Areas EEE =
in 2017/18 and 2018/19
Periodic Review EH B & 2017/18 2018/19

Level 5 5 A A%

1 (2 programme areas)
1 (2SR & E)

Total #&5t

1 (1 programme area)
1 (1E2RNEE)

In 2018/19, HKCAAVQ conducted Learning Programme Accreditation
(LPA) for a total of 20 local programmes and 10 non-local
programmes, and Learning Programme Re-accreditation (re-LPA) for
18 local programmes and 25 non-local programmes.

When compared with the previous year, there was a slight decrease in
the number of local programmes accredited, and also slight decrease
in the number of non-local programmes accredited and re-accredited.

Institutional Review was conducted for one institution for the purpose
of acquiring private university title as well as conducted for another for
seeking registration under Cap 320. Programme Area Accreditation
(PAA) were conducted in 3 programme areas for two institutions;
while Periodic Review (PR) was conducted for 1 programme area for
one institution.
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Vocational and Professional Accreditation

HKCAAVQ provides accreditation and quality assurance services
for vocational and professional education and training (VPET).
VPET operators come from different sectors including private
education/training institutes, public organisations, non-government
organisations, professional bodies and commercial corporations of
different scales.

Key Figures

This year marked a fruitful year for vocational and professional
accreditation. A total of 16 Initial Evaluations (IE) were completed and
330 learning programmes were accredited or re-accredited.

Breakdown of vocational and
professional programme accreditation and
re-accreditation

BRNEXERNE

BEBMMBEERFER (FER)
RBESTHEMZIR BRI ER
B RRERT - BEEA A MEIR
RBERENRIRS  BELEHE
BB - AEHEE  SEBUTAS  BX
B LA RRE 2 EEE -

FTEHF
BERR FERTANCEFH EME

B 5T AG  He30E BT E R ES
BT e

SR FFIG HIFT E R E
R AT 2R o i B & HY

QF Level Number of |IE Number of LPA Number of Re-LPA
& 4% Bl DIE A REFTEHE REBEHHE
2017/18 2018/19 2017/18 2018/19 2017/18 2018/19
Level 1 514 - 3 11 10 58 75
Level 2 ZE24% - - 16 23 74 90
Level 3 53#k 3 9 16 33 46 60
Level 4 544 1 3 8 14 13 19
Level 5 554 - 1 2 2 = 4
Level 6 564 1 - 1 - - -
Total 5 16 54 82 191 248

In the year 2018/19, the numbers of newly accredited operators
and programmes increased when compared with the last year. A
broad spectrum of operators had sought HKCAAVQ's accreditation,
including government units, statutory bodies and operators offering
in-house learning programmes, etc.

There was also an increase in the number of learning programmes re-
accredited, especially for learning programmes at QF Levels 1 to 3.
This was due to the large scale re-accreditation exercises conducted
for the Employees Retraining Board.

R2018/195F » ¥ 2P T (i TR 2 5L & HY
HFEHREF L -FHEBRFRE TR
ABEEME  BIEBAIM  EEH
RN ANEBIEIRIZ 2 WES -

BRRRIE —SEREEENHKAE Tk
BRE TZHNTEREFRAERR
BEIRETT AENRIZESE -
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Vocational and Professional Accreditation

Accreditation with Government Units

During the reporting period, four combined IE and Learning
Programme Accreditation (LPA) exercises were conducted for
government units.

The Hong Kong Customs College applied for accreditation for its
induction programmes for Customs Officers and Inspectors which
were pitched at QF Levels 4 and 5 respectively. This is the second
disciplinary force unit of the HKSAR Government to have its induction
programmes recognised under QF.

Moreover, an accreditation exercise was conducted with the
Operations and Training Division of Civil Aid Service to accredit its
Certificate in Mountain Search and Rescue Training at QF Level
3 which aims to provide specialised training to civil servants and
auxiliary members who have a role to play in mountain search and
rescue operations.

BT BB P 5P =

e M - BRI AT P
GREELTY T LTS

EEEHSR AR EHEBAENERNA
BRERFIE L OHEFEREE
MBI BARANESHHRIZ - KBEBK
AITHEEBRAFA - 58 — ELEEERNA
BERIE IV EEVE E R A] o

HERITRRBRL 2 RIGEITE MIAR
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HEITRIE - RIZEREER B E3MR
EERFEZ2HNBERRIERITEN
D158 REB AR & - IR AR E T
AR -
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HKCAAVQ also accredited the Certificate of Knowledge in Policing
at QF Level 3 from the Police Public Relations Branch (Community
Relations Bureau) of Hong Kong Police Force. This is a newly
developed programme offered to Junior Police Call Advanced
Leaders aged between 15 to 25 years old.
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Vocational and Professional Accreditation

Accreditation of In-house Learning
Programmes

During the reporting period, there was an increasing number
of organisations/companies seeking accreditation for their in-
house learning programmes. For example, the Operations Training
Department of MTR Corporation Limited and the Hongkong
International Theme Parks Limited — Learning and Development
Department (i.e. the unit responsible for providing in-house training to
the Hong Kong Disneyland’s cast members and leaders) had their in-
house learning programmes accredited in the year 2018/19.

Meanwhile, some operators of in-house learning programmes
undertook |E at a higher QF Level than the QF Level of their original IE
status, including the Hong Kong Jockey Club College who undertook
an |IE exercise at QF Level 5, while both the Training & Development
Centre of Bank of Communications (Hong Kong) Limited and the
Training Centre of Ngong Ping 360 Limited undertook an IE exercise
at QF Level 4.
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Vocational and Professional Accreditation

Accreditation of Member Organisation
under Statutory Body

The Hong Kong Institute of Construction (HKIC) is a newly established
member organisation of the Construction Industry Council (CIC), a
statutory body established under the Construction Industry Council
Ordinance (Cap. 587). HKIC of CIC had its first diploma programme
pitched at QF Level 3 accredited in 2018.

Programme Area Accreditation (PAA)

A PAA exercise covering the programme area “Architectural Studies”
at QF Level 4 was conducted in November 2018 for two of the
member institutions under the Vocational Training Council, i.e. the
Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education and Hong Kong Design
Institute.
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Vocational and Professional Accreditation

Accreditation of SCS-based
programmes

Since the launch of the QF in 2008, the Education Bureau (EDB)
has been forming Industry Training Advisory Committees (ITACs)/
Cross-Industry Training Advisory Committee (CITAC) for various
industries with a view to developing industry-based Specifications
of Competency Standards (SCS) and SCS-based Training
Packages(Training Packages). As at March 2019, 22 ITACs including
one CITAC were formed. An increasing number of operators have
developed SCS-based programmes by adopting the relevant Units of
Competencies (UoCs) specified in the SCS.

During the reporting period, HKCAAVQ accredited 89 SCS-based
programmes for 11 industries. In view of increasing demand on
elderly care service and the launch of the subsidy scheme for training
by the Social Welfare Department (SWD), the number of SCS-based
programmes is doubled in the Elderly Care Service Industry when
compared with the last year.

For meeting the new arrangement of Quality Assurance System for
Recognition Scheme of Security Training Courses (QASRS) by the
Security and Guarding Services Industry Authority (SGSIA), a total
of 22 SCS-based programmes in the Security Services Industry had
sought HKCAAVQ's accreditation during the reporting period.

As at March 2019, a total of 379 SCS-based programmes (QF Levels
1 - 6) covering 18 industries are listed on the QR.
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Vocational and Professional Accreditation

BEREXERTE

Breakdown of SCS-based programmes (QF levels 1-6) on the QR
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Vocational and Professional Accreditation
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Vocational and Professional Accreditation

Moderation of SCS and Training
Packages

In support of the development of the QF, HKCAAVQ carries out the
moderation of SCS and Training Packages at the request of EDB.
During the reporting period, HKCAAVQ moderated three sets of SCS
for the Automotive, Catering and Fashion Industries, as well as seven
sets of Training Packages for the Retail, Security Services, and Watch
and Clock Industries.

Major Developments

During the reporting period, HKCAAVQ had been working closely
with different stakeholders in the VPET sector and was playing an
increasingly important role in supporting the different initiatives for
enhancing the capability of the workforce in Hong Kong.

SWD’s Subsidy Scheme for Training to Home
Managers, Health Workers and Care Workers

SWD introduced a subsidy scheme for training to Home Managers,
Health Workers and Care Workers to promote continuous
enhancement of service quality of residential care homes. To be
recognised by SWD as approved training programmes and that the
graduates being eligible for full subsidies, the training programmes
must be recognised under the QF. A collective accreditation exercise
for eight operators with 12 programmes under the said scheme was
planned. The first batch of accreditation reports of nine accredited
programmes were issued in the first quarter of 2019.

New Arrangement of Security Training
Courses under QASRS

With effect from 1 January 2019, basic security training programmes
accredited by HKCAAVQ are deemed as meeting the standards of
QASRS of the SGSIA. To facilitate potential operators to apply for
accreditation, a tailor-made workshop was conducted in December
2018 for providing an overview of the accreditation process and
standards as well as the QASRS requirements. A total of 29 operators
with more than 50 participants attended the workshop.
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Vocational and Professional Accreditation

Accreditation of Vocational Qualifications
Pathway Programmes

Since the launch of the Vocational Qualifications Pathway (VQP) under
the QF, two industries, namely Banking and Elderly Care Service,
have introduced VQPs for operators to develop learning programmes
based on the competence requirements of specific job roles.

During the reporting period, a number of VQP programmes
were accredited, including two programmes from the Training &
Development Centre, Human Resources Department, Bank of China
(Hong Kong) Limited which were designed for the job roles “Teller”
and “Financial Services Officer” and were pitched at QF Levels 3 and
4 respectively.

In the Elderly Care Service Industry, VQP for three job roles, namely
Home Managers, Health Workers and Care Workers were developed
according to the SWD’s new curriculum specifications for the training
of the three job roles. During the reporting period, seven VQP
programmes for Health Workers were accredited by HKCAAVQ.

Accreditation of Assessment Agency for
Professional Qualifications

In September 2018, EDB introduced the initiative of Recognition
of Professional Qualifications under the QF which allows eligible
professional bodies to seek accreditation from HKCAAVQ to become
assessment agencies for issuing professional qualifications that are
recognised under the QF.

“Professional qualifications” refer to qualifications (other than mere
membership status) granted by a bona fide local organisation
to individuals who meet, among others, the requisite academic
qualifications plus prescribed years of industry or professional
experience and have passed through a robust assessment in written
or practical format, not underpinned by an associated learning
programme.

Upon successful accreditation by HKCAAVQ and subsequent
appointment by the Secretary for Education as an assessment
agency under the Accreditation of Academic and Vocational
Qualifications Ordinance (Cap. 592), the organisation will be able to
issue qualifications recognised under the QF and listed in the QR in
the category of professional qualifications.
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Vocational and Professional Accreditation

The Guidance Notes on Accreditation of Assessment Agencies for
Professional Qualifications has been published on the HKCAAVQ's
website to facilitate interested organisations to have a better
understanding of the accreditation process and standards.

Future Developments/Priorities

In the coming year, HKCAAVQ will continue to work with different
stakeholders in supporting the development of the VPET sector.

Accreditation Plan on the Security Training
Courses under QASRS

Following the briefing session and workshop conducted last year,
four collective accreditation exercises have been scheduled in June
2019, September 2019, January 2020 and June 2020 for operators
who wish to obtain accreditation status for their basic security training
programmes and be recognised under the QASRS. Tailor-made
workshop on accreditation and QASRS requirements will continue to
be held in the next reporting period. For a more efficient accreditation
process, differentiation approach will be applied to operators who
develop their programmes by adopting the relevant Training Package
of the Security Services Industry.

Pilot Run to Enhance Transparency of
Accreditation Schedule

To facilitate operators’ planning, the Vocational and Professional
Accreditation Unit has been piloting the publication of available
accreditation time slots in the next 3-9 months on the HKCAAVQ'’s
e-Portal since October 2018.

This initiative is aimed at enhancing transparency of the accreditation
schedule, ensuring that the operators’ expectations are better served,
and facilitating operators to choose their preferred accreditation
time slots that better suit their programme development schedule
and readiness. HKCAAVQ will continue to maintain a close dialogue
with the operators and enhance the provision of information on the
e-Portal.
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In addition to accreditation under the QF, HKCAAVQ provides a range
of assessment services and consultancy services as authorised under
any other enactment and/or by the Secretary for Education. For
examples:

@)

(@

The provision of professional advice to the Registrar of Nonlocal
Higher and Professional Education Courses (the Registrar) in
the assessment of non-local courses registered or exempted
from registration under the Non-local Higher and Professional
Education (Regulation) Ordinance (Cap. 493). The approval of
registration or exemption from registration of a non-local course
under Cap. 493 rests with the Registrar.

The provision of expert advice to the Labour and Welfare
Bureau (LWB), the final approval authority of the Continuing
Education Fund (CEF), on the courses to be included in the
register of reimbursable courses under the CEF.

Performing the role of the sole assessment authority for the
Continuing Professional Development (CPD) Programme under
the Insurance Intermediaries Quality Assurance Scheme (IIQAS)
of the Insurance Authority.

The provision of quality assurance service of the Applied
Learning (ApL) courses as commissioned by the EDB.

Assessment of Non-local Courses

This year, HKCAAVQ assessed 69 new applications, 404 annual
returns and 227 applications for changes to registered courses.
Compared to the previous year, the number of new applications
increased by 38%. Courses leading to bachelor and master awards
continue to be the majority in the new applications.
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Assessment

1 BR 3%

Comparison of breakdown of new applications for non-local course

assessment in 2017/18 and 2018/19 by discipline
2017/188282018/19F E A hRETMBFE F (REWEHE S H) 2017/18

Accounting / Business / Finance 22
Bit/EE 2R

Architecture / Surveying / Housing / Engineering 4
BENE /BRI IRE

Social Sciences / Education -
HERE HE

Hospitality / Tourism 4
B 5 AR 78Tk

Law 2
e

Fine Art / Design 4
Bl /R

Science / Technology 4
B2 B

Others 10
HAth

2018/19

Total £ & 50

69
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Assessment
T 1% R 7%

Comparison of breakdown of new applications for non-local course

assessment in 2017/18 and 2018/19 by level of study

2017/18882018/19F B At R EEMEAFHF (REEBKF D E) 2017/18 2018/19

Doctorate 2 1

[ER=—Iv2

Master 15 17

T=hn==tva

Postgraduate Certificate / Diploma 8 7

BIRRAEFESUR

Graduate Certificate / Diploma 1 2

REEE, UR

Bachelor with Honours 15 5

B4 (K8)Ef

Bachelor 5 13

B+ 284

Associate Degree - 1

B2+ 2

Higher Diploma 4 3

= AR

Diploma 8 8

st

Higher Certificate - 2

aREE

Certificate 1 8

FE

Others 1 2

H A,

Total £ 50 69

Pl 1 B-1-B>1 Bl B-1 Bl B~1 B~1 H~1 H~1 H~1 H~1 |

@ 207
® 2619

15 SR B T B D DR " ® 1| ® 1 ® 1 ® 1§ ® 1 ®B I ®HB 1 i
10 B B D DR 1 ®m [ ® [ ®B I ®B 1§ ®B 1 |1
o ﬂ o a.ﬂﬁ Go ar
Doctorate Master Pommcmm/ GramaeCemfwel Bai\ehrwvm Honours Associate Degree ngher Dlp\uma Dlploma Higher Cemﬁcate Cemhcate Olhers

i ae i BLE Bt (RH) B %iéﬁ L] wRA RREE
%ﬂ»&ﬁ%‘/ pic. pk}ﬁﬁ‘/ 8

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications 43

EEBMEBEEETER




Assessment
1% bR 7

Comparison of breakdown of new applications for non-local course

assessment in 2017/18 and 2018/19 by geographic origin

2017/188282018/19F E AR ETMBAFTEF (RERERHES H) 2017/18 2018/19

UK 35 50

g

Australia 3 6

BN

USA 10 6

x

Switzerland - 4

Imd

Others 2 3

EAh

Total £ & 50 69
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Assessment of Continuing Education Fund
(CEF) Courses

This year, HKCAAVQ conducted 85 surprise audit visits, assessed
819 applications, including 306 applications for course registration
and 513 applications for course amendment to registered CEF
reimbursable courses. These numbers represent an increase
of 45% and 13% for course registration and course renewal
applications respectively. As regards the breakdown of the number
of course registration applications, the number of course registration
applications from non-self-accrediting course providers has
decreased by 52% as compared to that in 2017/18; and that from
self-accrediting course providers has however increased by 130%.
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Assessment

1 BR 3%

Comparison of breakdown of applications FFEEICE T RN FFTFZ
for assessment of CEF new reimbursable HiEBF (2017/18FEE R

courses in 2017/18 and 2018/19 2018/19F [E)
By Self-accrediting By Non self-accrediting
Institutions Course Providers
Type of Courses HBETHERE HIEBTHERE
RIZE R 0 BRI BRI
2017/18 2018/19 2017/18 2018/19
Business Services 45 141 36 14
BEX Y
Financial Services 17 58 32 15
EA T
Creative Industries 10 8 8 1
BlE T
Tourism 21 24 2 -
g% 3
Language 2 2 - 2
mX
Logistics 2 13 - 1
NS
Design (Product and Digital) 12 11 3 6

Rt (FE m KR B RET)
Interpersonal and Intrapersonal

Skills for the Workplace 0 0 - 0

TR ABR R AEA A BE

SCS-based 3 1 18 9

BE NIRET AR RRAZ

Total 112 258 99 48
46 Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications

EREBMEBEERETER



Assessment
1 ¥ bR %
2018/19
wo W o @i @ et
’ aie @ Gmmemiaien @ Sttt
100 = == I == [ == I == 1 BN B e
2017/18
I’ 2018/19
1
2018/19
2017/18
50 ‘ ’ - _— || - . ||
2017/18
201718 ‘/,,4 2018/19 2017/18 2018/19 .
» | 20118/19 2018/19 1 [—] ,‘ 2018/19
17 2017/18 ; 201718 ﬁ'
2 2 i
0 " ll «0 e " N ﬂ‘
Business Services Financial Services Creative Industries Tourism Language Logistics Design Interpersonal and Intrapersonal SCS based
BERE SHEKE fET% if23 BX g (Product and Digital) Skils for the Workplace: HNBENERR
Fi (ERREGRT) THBHARR
BATE
In June 2002, the Government set up the Continuing Education Fund BT PA20025F6 A K L I B HEIE H &
(CEF) to encourage adults to pursue further education by providing RIBREREHE NFINER) - B
them with subsidies for continuing education and training, with a view FAREERS UMEERBERZHH
to facilitating Hong Kong’s transition to a knowledge-based economy AU 47 K FE S A8 2 BRL B8 -
and adaptation to an increasingly globalised world.
From February 2018 to April 2019, HKCAAVQ was commissioned 201852 A £2019F4 7 - T RAEH
by LWB to provide consultancy services to the LWB and Office BREFIBRBRT RFELEECESH
of Continuing Education Fund for the development of a range of ERIBHEMRG AR B2019F4
enhancement measures applicable to all CEF courses from 1 April A1B BRI FTA Al & 3B IR RE
2019. Details of the enhancement measures have been provided B — RN E(LIEE - FEEBCESIFI
to the CEF providers and announced on the website of Office of HECERAREBIEENFE e
Continuing Education Fund. EREECESPERNBEANRT
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Assessment

1 BR 3%

Assessment of CPD Programmes

During the reporting period, 138 new applications, 309 annual re-
assessments and 238 change applications were processed under
the Insurance Intermediaries Quality Assurance Scheme (IIQAS).
Compared with the previous year, the numbers of new application
and re-assessment application increased by 5% and 4% respectively.
This reflects an increasing industry demand on professional
development for practitioners.

In addition to assessed CPD activities, 26 QF-recognised
programmes in the Insurance Industry were directly recognised as
qualified CPD activities under the CPD Programme of lIQAS through
the mechanism of direct recognition.

For further enhancing the transparency and efficiency of the
assessment service, a set of new Guidance Notes on Assessment for
CPD was published in September 2018 with a view to providing more
comprehensive information on assessment criteria, a step-by-step
application procedure and a revised fee schedule.

Breakdown of assessed CPD programmes for
1A

Re-assessment

FREERELEREFZ

AR P SRS T 108 T
FRAF iR 3 - S00TR /A F T 1 8 208
HHE R - REF ML HRE
SPixeR B R A B e M A 5 8 L
5% 4% RB R EIf 3 B FAE 45
CESSER

BRFF B F B RIZTRIN HB26(E
R ENRRERE  ERERA DR
RPN ABRREAE THORETEE
ERZ -

B — PR RE HE KA
£ ERNR2018FOAEM T —EH
B GFEZEHFINEEFTZES) 5t
Sz AER] - B EERR B R AT S AT MO FT A%
WEBEFEREE2AMNE -

AT I IR BE I A S E
KELREZH

Course
Amendment Application

KB EE

New Application Application
HRETERE BEBRRE
2017/18 132 298
2018/19 138 309

Quality Assurance Services

In the school sector, HKCAAVQ continues to be commissioned by
EDB to quality assure the delivery of Applied Learning (ApL) courses.
This year, quality assurance visits were conducted for 10 ApL courses
for the 2018-2020 cohort. The number of visits was similar to last
year.
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Qualifications Assessment

HKCAAVQ offers qualifications assessment services for the general
public, organisations, and government bureaux/departments on
qualifications awarded by granting bodies outside Hong Kong. We
offer a professional opinion on whether the totality of the educational
qualifications (i.e. the integrated learning outcomes of the highest
qualification including those learning outcomes achieved through
learning deemed to have a substantial bearing on the qualification
under assessment) of an individual meets the standard of a particular
level of qualification in Hong Kong.

Key Figures

Qualifications Assessment Cases by Source of Application
(1 April 2018 - 31 March 2019)

SR

ABBR/ARAL  TRBENBUTED
P4 (i FE AN 1t B JE AR IS AR 3 Y BB IR
FHERTS - FEPERERIBEHRFA AR
BE(ARSACESNRS2E A
RETFHHEASEZENSEBZHGAE
BRR)  BREINERZERMENRE
TEELBNRERHEEXER -

FTEHTF

=)y -y
(201844 H1H- 201935315 )

2017-18 2018-19
Sources of Application Number Number
BRI L= 2B
Civil Service Bureau 150 135
RBEEBR
Education Bureau 114 111
HER
Individuals 3,628 3,885
R AL
Other Organisations 846 912
H {th 55
Total 4,638 5,043
me
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Qualifications Assessment

BRI

Level of Major Qualifications held by Applicants HEAWLTEZEFEE

(1 April 2018 - 31 March 2019) (201844 H1H- 2019435314 )

2017-18 2018-19

Qualifications Number Number
BREEE 28 4|
Doctoral Degree 48 59
B+
Master’s Degree 598 656
=
Postgraduate Diploma/Certificate 266 327
TIESUR S BE
Bachelor’s Degree 2,875 3,095
=+
Sub-degree 455 520
B2
Secondary School Level 135 131
R
Others 261 255
Hth
Total 4,638 5,043
HE
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w I
Qualifications Assessment

BE

BB E ELFHERME
(201844 H1H- 201935314 )

Place of Award of the Major Qualifications held by
Applicants (1 April 2018 - 31 March 2079)

Place of Award
ERERDE

2017-18 2018-19
Number Number

B

2B

Australia (R ) 372 375
Canada (J1Z£X) 167 182
France (VB ) 29 36
Hong Kong (B &%) 35 42
India (ENfE) 203 181
Japan (H7) 23 34
Mainland China ( /Bl Ay ith, ) 1,020 1,160
New Zealand (4B 7835 ) 55 58
Pakistan (B £ H7:H) 21 13
Philippines (3E2E ) 107 51
South Africa (E33E) 147 134
Taiwan (# B =& 398 512
UK (22ER) 1,389 1,505
USA (3£ET) 477 459
Others (HAth) 195 301
Total 4,638 5,043
me
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Qualifications Assessment

BRI
Place of Award of Major Qualifications assessed and FEMEBFWTAEREBEEFLETH
considered as meeting the standard of comparable YT KF (2018F481H- 20194
qualifications under HKQF (1 April 2018 - 31 March 2019)* 3H31H) *
2017-18 2018-19
Places of Award of Major Qualification Comparable rate Comparable rate
FTEREYHEE TEHHEYHERE
FEERERME ZEDHK ZEDH
Australia 96.5% 92.3%
B
Canada 100% 99.5%
(mzEX)
Mainland China 99.3% 99.7%
(R AH)
New Zealand 100% 100%
(AR )
South Africa 100% 100%
(F3E)
Taiwan 98.2% 98.8%
(FEZEE)
UK 97.3% 96.5%
(ZE[E)
USA 95.6% 86.2%
(£E)
* The qualifications assessment is neither an institutional nor a * BRI ELIERR I REZTE Bt
programme accreditation, and the result relates only to the qualifications FHEERREARNEREBA -

of the individual applicant being assessed.

Yearly Totals FFH

In the reporting period, HKCAAVQ conducted 5,043 qualifications TEREHE - FTE R HEIE 75,0432
assessments, an increase of 8.5% when compared to the figure of A ER - B EFHBEE 4,6507R18
4,650 in the previous year. AR T85% -
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Source of Applications

The increase in the number of applications is mainly as a result of
increased numbers of “General Purpose” and “Teacher Registration
Purpose” applications from individuals as well as organisations such
as international schools and learning centres in Hong Kong. These
two types of applications aim to facilitate applicants seeking further
studies and employment opportunities including local teaching
positions in Hong Kong. The strong local employment market and
the continual expansion of the private school education sector and
learning centres in Hong Kong are key factors that underpin the rise in
applications.

Level and Place of Award of Qualifications

The majority of qualifications assessed are Bachelor's Degrees.
However, the numbers of Master's Degrees/Postgraduate Diplomas/
Certificates/Doctoral Degrees assessed had increased significantly
when compared with last year and this could be attributed to the
ability of the local economy to attract high calibre individuals to come
to and work in Hong Kong.

The United Kingdom and Mainland China remained the two major
source countries of awards for our assessment services. The
numbers of qualifications from Taiwan has also grown significantly.
The figures for Mainland China and Taiwan followed an established
trend where more and more graduates were returning to Hong Kong
after their studies.

Enhanced Public Awareness of Qualifications
Assessment Service

HKCAAVQ continued to reach out to the community to enhance
public understanding of our principles and processes in conducting
qualifications assessment over the reporting period. Talks were
held for various stakeholders including career masters, students
and parents. More information is also made available for students
regarding qualifications assessment through study pathway
guidebooks etc.

Qualifications Assessment
2 FE T

ZEE Y

BEFGERZIER T2EANKE
EAR#E (FINERSREHE L)
Z [ =M R [ e ke E
Rzl BEEMER - EMERE M H
FBEEMDRBAFELEERELR
B BRAHRBEA - AR ETS
RE) - A RANBFEERAOLLERA
RIRBE R L ThE A E I INH
#IRA -

EF 2 BRI E

RBOHEHBNBERB LM R
M EFHAL - FFERFTEERER
ERBELEM REXE EEXEL
BUNBBERAFRERZLZ M EABE
EHARAMEERSISEEALIET
TEE R

SEAIR (IR R BEF SR LB
55 PR 35 9 A L2 B O - AR
B REFEAENSERE 0 ARE
85 - o B B & R R TN
A48 A 1 B T

18 & 1 R ¥ B 15 IR 7Y
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EHREMA RPEEESHREE
Atnsg A RE AR BETREFEHR
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Qualifications Assessment

SR

Authentication of Degree Certificates of
Qualifications

HKCAAVQ continued to work closely with awarding institutions
to authenticate applicants’ qualifications. Apart from awarding
institutions, we have started using national resource centres to
authenticate qualifications and at times fake qualifications were
detected. During the reporting period, we identified 16 cases of fake
qualifications which were all reported to the Hong Kong Police.

Reasons for Non-assessable Qualifications
Assessment

Although the number of qualifications assessed and considered by
the QA Service as meeting the standard of comparable qualifications
under HKQF is high, there were still a large number of applications
that contain qualifications that are not assessable by QA. In the
reporting period, there were 592 QA applications that were not
assessed by QA due to (a) the qualifications not being recognised
in the home countries/areas; (b) the qualifications were fake; (c) the
applicants are unable to provide sufficient information; and (d) the
applicants voluntarily withdrew their applications.
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Major Developments

The QA i-Portal has become the standard web-platform for applicants
to submit their applications and make payment online as well as for
QA Service to provide status information on their applications. The
capability of QA i-Portal to provide the latest assessment information
to our applicants allows QA Service to better serve our applicants/
stakeholders. The integration of the QA i-Portal and HKCAAVQ's
Quality Management System (QMS) has greatly enhanced our service
effectiveness and efficiency.

In the third quarter of 2018, QA Service visited four national
accreditation/credential evaluation authorities in North America
to share with them the latest educational/credential evaluation
developments in Hong Kong and to receive an update about the
recent developments in these places. In March 2019, QA Service
also visited the Chinese Service Center for Scholarly Exchange in
Beijing to exchange with them views/information/experience on
credential evaluation of foreign qualifications in Hong Kong. Whist
in Beijing, QA Service also visited the Regulatory Body for Chinese-
Foreign Cooperation in Running Schools in order to gain a better
understanding of the regulation/operation of overseas educational
provisions in Mainland China.

Future Developments/Priorities

HKCAAVQ’s Country/Area Profiles (CAPs) provide comprehensive
information on the eight main countries/areas with which qualifications
assessments are primarily conducted, namely: Australia, Canada,
Mainland China, New Zealand, South Africa, Taiwan, the United
Kingdom and the United States of America. The CAPs have greatly
enhanced the efficiency and effectiveness of our work in quality
assessment; and it is important that the CAPs are timely updated in
response to the changes occurred in related jurisdictions to ensure
they provide the most up-to-date relevant information to both our
assessors and stakeholders.

With the CAPs firmly established as the main assessment tool and
information sources on non-local qualifications; and the QA i-Portal
as the main means to reach out to our applicants/stakeholders,
HKCAAVQ will continue to explore ways to integrate the two, i.e. to
continue the ongoing research and development of the CAPs and to
provide CAP information through the QA i-Portal to better inform our
applicants/stakeholders.

Qualifications Assessment
2 FE T
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Being the public face of the Hong Kong Qualifications Framework
(QF), the Qualifications Register (QR) is a centralised web-based
register containing information on QF-recognised qualifications
and their associated providers. As a web-based tool for searching
quality assured qualifications in the planning and pursuit of life-long
learning, QR serves as a useful information source to help learners
make informed choices on selecting suitable programmes and plan
their progression pathways. HKCAAVQ has been designated in the
Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance
(Cap 592) as the QR Authority for developing and maintaining the QR
in support of the QF.

Qualifications Framework and Qualifications Register (QF&QR)

ERAMERERERBNARNE 1t
HMLEEMBREEHERERBRIN
BE EEREREBEZHENER
ERHBESRESENRE LTS &
2 B R RIAR B2 B R ER
TR LR BN A ARSI R A ErE
BoRE (Bl RBXEEFE G
(%5928 ) - FERWIETEREEAM
ERNIHERERE AERREERE
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Key Figures FEHF
Management of QR Records & & it % 5= 2017-18 2018-19
No. of Qualifications on QR (March figures) & FE %t EHEREEE (A KEFE) 8,250 8,523
QR Hit Rate (Annual Growth) EF G it 2h & X (Fig R %K) 7% 6.36%
No. of QR Batches Uploaded _ &k 7 & ffE 4 ffft 89 £k 48 24 B 1,148 1,374
No. of Misleading QF Related Advertisement 3 [ & 2R iR 8 E &S & 9 3

Number of Qualifications on QR by Operator Type of

Accreditation Status

BRERENTERREINEERE

HKCAAVQ-accredited Operators 4712 B P /) & i & 3,692 3,509
PAA Operators B 2RI E B ERNE P EH 634 1,019
Assessment Agencies =T fi #15 767 810

Self-accrediting Operators B 17 5T 25 H) & iif & 3,157 3,185
No. of Qualifications on QR EE Zfft LW EEH B 8,250 8,523

* Figures as at March of the year
HEUNEE= AERBREE

Number of Qualifications on QR by QF Level

REERSRBRANE I NEEHE

QF Levels 1 — 4 BEREZRIER RN 245 5,908 6,174
QF Levels 5 -7 BEREZRIERFISETHR 2,342 2,349
No. of Qualifications on QR EE &t LN ER & B 8,250 8,523

* Figures as at March of the year
HEUNEE= ABREE
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Qualifications Framework and Qualifications Register (QF&QR)

Number of Qualifications on QR by CAT Arrangement and

by Operator Type of Accreditation Status
REBHPRBREZZHANERENTIERREA N EREE

CAT (Programme) and/or CAT (Recognition of Prior Learning)

BHRELRER (RB) R/ XB2HRERER CBEEERM)

Self-accrediting Operators H 177125 H) & it &

HKCAAVQ-accredited and PAA Operators
KIERTERAGBENEETEERNENE

CAT (Institutional) 245 278 & 8% (B )

From Self-accrediting Operators H 17 7T 25 H) & it & H 15

From HKCAAVQ-accredited and PAA Operators
KRABERTELEBGENGBETEERNEPERE

*

Figures as at March of the year

© BMENSE AREEE
Major Developments

Quality Enhancement Support Scheme
(QESS) Project on Credit Accumulation and
Transfer (CAT) Centralised Database on QR

The CAT centralised database (CAT database) for listing CAT
information and articulation arrangements on the QR was successfully
set up and launched in October 2018. With a dedicated search
page on the QR, the CAT information as provided by self-accrediting
institutions and HKCAAVQ-accredited operators is now publicly
searchable on the QR.

To promote and publicise the CAT database to the education and
training sector, HKCAAVQ staged the CAT Launching Ceremony to
highlight the features and use of the CAT database in November
2018 as a part of our Annual Event. The Launching Ceremony was
officiated by Mr Kevin Yeung JP, Secretary of Education; Professor
Peter Yuen, Member of the Project Advisory Group of the CAT
Database; Ir Dr Alex Chan, Council Chairman of HKCAAVQ; and Mr
Albert Chow, Executive Director of HKCAAVQ.

ERAEBRERERM
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Qualifications Framework and Qualifications Register (QF&QR)

ERRABRERERM

To upkeep the momentum, we initiated the stakeholders’
communication and engagement strategy by conducting three
information briefing sessions on the CAT database in December
2018. Individual stakeholders were also encouraged to seek advice
and assistance from HKCAAVQ in their preparation and submission of
the CAT information.

Two New Types of Qualifications
“Professional Qualifications (PQ)” and
“Vocational Qualifications Pathway (VQP)
Programmes” on QR

Two new types of qualification, “Professional Qualification” (PQ) and
“Vocational Qualifications Pathway” (VQP) programmes, were newly
included in the QR following the launch of two new initiatives of the
EDB in the VPET sector. The “Types of Qualifications” search field was
also enhanced to improve clarity and users’ searching experience.

Future Developments/Priorities

Launch of Real-time and Historical
Infographics on QR

To enhance the presentation of the statistics on CAT centralised
database, a range of infographics on the QR will be gradually
developed and implemented. The infographics on the QR will serve a
dual purpose: (a) to transform the CAT profile of current QR records
from a static mode to an interactive mode; and (b) to provide a real-
time visual overview of the distribution of current qualifications on the
QR.

Indication of Sending Qualifications of CAT

In order to differentiate the sending qualifications from the receiving
programmes when listing the CAT information on the QR and for a
greater clarity, a sorting function will be implemented for receiving
programmes and sending qualifications with the Credit Transfer
Arrangement on the QR. This enhancement is currently under review
and is targeted to be launched on the QR in late 2019.
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Key Figures

Research & Training
i 95 B 3% A

FTEHT

2017-18 2018-19

Number of Appointed Specialists FF& B & X

Number of Capacity Building Activities 35 3 5E Bf

32 sessions 5%

860 717

56 sessions %X

855 participants AJX 2,081 participants A X

Major Developments

Study on International Experiences of Self-
financing Post-secondary Education

To support the review of self-financing post-secondary education
in Hong Kong by the Task Force on Review of Self-financing Post-
secondary Education (the Task Force), HKCAAVQ was commissioned
by EDB in 2018 to conduct a research study into the systems and
practices of the self-financing post-secondary education sector
in nine economies (including Australia, Germany, Japan, Mainland
China, Singapore, South Korea, Taiwan, the United Kingdom, and the
United States). The purpose was to enable the Task Force to better
gauge the global trends in public and private sector development
in higher education. The Task Force published its review report in
December 2018, in which it was indicated that the study has provided
a useful overview of the situations in the studied economies.

Online Learning Programme Accreditation

The inclusion of significant online elements in programme design is
a global trend in education and training. In light of this, HKCAAVQ
launched the accreditation service for online learning programmes
(OLPs) in January 2018. This service is applicable to both local and
non-local learning programmes. Operators can apply for accreditation
of their online learning programmes starting from April 2018.
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Research & Training
3 K %3

A briefing was conducted in October 2018 to share with eligible
operators the tentative schedule of offering this new service, based on
the findings from the demand survey. Interested parties may choose
to undertake two collective exercises in 2019/20 to maximise cost
effectiveness, or to proceed as standalone exercises as usual. At the
initial stage, the eligibility criteria were set to ensure that institutions
applying for the service have reasonable experience in the provision
of education or training. To facilitate operators in the preparation for
OLP accreditation, a workshop was also conducted in early 2019
focusing on the specific evidence requirements. 46 participants from
9 organisations attended the workshop.

Revised Accreditation Standards under the
Four-stage Quality Assurance Process

Following the promulgation of the revised accreditation standards in
April 2018 after the HKCAAVQ Council’s approval, the Manual of the
Four-stage QA Process (the Manual) was developed as a single point
of reference covering the process and revised accreditation standards
for seeking accreditation under the HKQF. After its initial release in
2018, a refined version of the Manual was published in April 2019.
Together with the Manual, Evidence Guides are also published to
provide assistance to operators in the selection and presentation of
evidence to demonstrate meeting the revised accreditation standards
at different stages of the Four-stage QA process.

In order to explain the new features and enhancements of the revised
accreditation standards, a special series of briefings was conducted
for different stakeholders before the revised accreditation standards
came into effect in April 2019.
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Capacity Building for Stakeholders

Training is a statutory function of HKCAAVQ aiming to equip the
operators, specialists and staff members of HKCAAVQ with a good
understanding of the accreditation standards and process, supporting
the development of the HKQF. HKCAAVQ provides training to
operators and specialists in the form of regular, thematic and tailor-
made workshops. During the reporting period, 56 capacity building
activities, involving 2081 participants were arranged for specialists,
operators, local and international quality assurance (QA) practitioners/
professionals and HKCAAVQ staff. A summary of the sessions
conducted for operators and specialists is provided below.

Number of Sessions

EWEH

Stakeholder ## &

Research & Training
Wt 5% R 3 5

B EBWIE I E B

[IFIEB IR REFT —ETER
BB EEREENE TERE
RNBEHIERERRRERD T
R UBBERERRBNER -FER
PRI IEB EES R=10 T B
BEFI - EREIE A L E A RIS - 2
WEHRN - FFERALEM 75655
B Ho08IARZE  EhEEREL
mE - ERXRLFERBE EAKASE
MIMEFERRBEHABMEEAL
ERARMELT :

Number of
Participants
S8 AR

Specialists 5 6 269
Operators iR 12 & i & 46 1,678
Staff 7F & R 8 3 101
Local and international QA practitioners/professionals

R MGINEEEZRENERXAE 1 33
Total 56 2,081

Training needs of different stakeholders are continuously monitored
and collected through various means, including opinion surveys
of training events, annual post-training participant evaluation, and
suggestions from HKCAAVQ accreditation units. Based on the
training needs analysis, training strategies and materials are regularly
reviewed in response to the development of policies and practices of
HKCAAVQ.
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Research & Training
W% R & A

Since July 2018, the training model was revised to engage
professional staff from HKCAAVQ accreditation units as trainers to
conduct regular and thematic training activities for operators. The
revised model aims to provide more hands-on guidance and up-to-
date examples. According to the opinion survey results, this strategy
was proven to be effective in improving the overall satisfaction of
operators with our training service. In view of the positive outcome,
the implementation of this strategy will be expanded as appropriate.
The results are shown in the graph below:

H2018F7AR EMEMNTHMERE
BIENEL THE HEAEFEIE
M EERMEREE HWEHAREEREE
ZERBERE—FHT - BREFEHANE
RASHER WAEEWRATERE
HEJNERREE -t FERE
RIERIEES RIEREHEMEIIER -
HEERAESERNOT

Participants' view on the quality of the regular and thematic training activities of HKCAAVQ
SNEHTERERREEEIEBDREE

Mean Score*

25 8
5

4.8

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19
Year F£E
—@— Specialists B —0— Operators & &
* Mean score is calculated from the participants’ degree of agreement

with the statement “the overall quality of the event was high”, where
score 5 indicates “strongly agree” and score 1 indicates “strongly
disagree”.

* FHEBHIBRBEL2NEL [EEN S BHIEHEER| R 9 2R
B Asp RwD (1D RIEETRE 59 RIERE)
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During the reporting period, a wide spectrum of operators,
including the Employee Retraining Board, the Correctional Services
Department, the Hong Kong Academy for Performing Arts and Macao
Tertiary Education Services Office (now known as Higher Education
Bureau), commissioned HKCAAVQ to provide tailor-made training.

With the launch of the revised accreditation standards of the Four-
stage QA Process, it is expected that the general demand for training
will increase. To cope with the demand, HKCAAVQ has embarked
on migrating some of our regular training, such as induction training
for specialists, to online delivery, allowing our training resources to be
allocated to activities with higher demand.

Launch of the HKCAAVQ Specialist Online
Learning Platform

As outlined in the Strategic Plan 2015-2019, HKCAAVQ strives
to provide training through multiple delivery modes to meet the
increasingly diverse and evolving needs of operators, specialists and
quality assurance agencies in the region.

Aligning with this strategic direction, HKCAAVQ launched the
HKCAAVQ Specialist Online Learning Platform (SOLP) in January
2019. The SOLP is built on the Moodle learning platform which, in
addition to supporting the majority of browsers, is also available as a
mobile app.

At this early phase of implementation, a four-week induction course
in two languages, Chinese (Cantonese) and English, has been
developed. To encourage peer learning among the specialists and to
provide them with better online support, specialists will be invited to
enrol into the induction course by batch.

With the launch of SOLP, specialists can enjoy the enhanced flexibility
of attending induction training anywhere anytime.

Research & Training
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Professional Training Workshop in Quality
Assurance

As its vision, HKCAAVQ aims to be a nationally and globally
recognised independent quality assurance body in education and
training. Following this vision, HKCAAVQ developed the “Professional
Training Workshop in Quality Assurance” to share its 29 years’
experience in quality assurance and accreditation, as well as creating
an exchange platform for quality assurance practitioners and
professionals.

After the successful launch in March 2018 with participants from
Australia, Mauritius, Oman and Singapore, the second offer of the
workshop in March 2019 has again seen a strong demand with a
good mix of local and international participants. 33 quality assurance
practitioners and professionals from Australia, Japan, the Philippines,
and Macao attended the workshop in this reporting period. The
continued success of this event demonstrates the highly recognised
standing of HKCAAVQ in quality assurance and accreditation in
the region, as well as its commitment to professionalisation of this
important role in education and training.

The workshop will be offered regularly to meet the increasingly diverse
and evolving needs of operators, specialists and quality assurance
agencies in the region.

Appointment and Engagement of Specialists

Peer review is one of the guiding principles of HKCAAVQ and is at the
heart of our accreditation process. Under this principle, HKCAAVQ
maintains a pool of specialists to support its accreditation and
assessment services.

At the end of the reporting period, 717 specialists were listed in the
Specialists Register, with the overall utilisation rate of specialists at
84%. To meet the business development needs, we will continue to
identify prospective Specialists from our established networks locally
and around the globe.
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Distribution of Specialists (local vs. non local)
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Utilisation of Specialists
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Development of Infographics

Since the launch of the Quality Management System (QMS) of
HKCAAVQ in February 2015, accreditation related information was
retained in the QMS which serves the purpose of performing analysis.
To make the best use of the available data, a proof-of-concept pilot was
conducted to test the feasibility of automating the process of generating
infographics based on the data from QMS for our internal use.

As a strategy, gathering data from different sources to generate
institutional and sectorial infographics supporting policy formulation
and analysis on operators’ track record is an important step for
HKCAAVQ to take in the near future.

Future Developments/Priorities

Research and training play an important role in the enhancement of
consistency and efficiency in our quality assurance. To this end, the
adoption of relevant technologies is a key priority for HKCAAVQ to
remain abreast of the international developments in accreditation and
quality assurance.

Another focus of research and training is to share HKCAAVQ's
experience and expertise with sister organisations, as well as the
quality assurance communities in general. In particular, HKCAAVQ has
accumulated significant experience in providing systematic training to
specialists, which is an important asset to leverage on in the future.
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Engagement and Collaboration

HIHNBEBMEE

Engagement and Collaboration

HKCAAVQ places prime importance on building strong links with
a wide range of stakeholders not only to keep abreast of the latest
developments in various sectors and industries, but also to share our
quality assurance practices with education and training institutions,
government authorities, partner agencies and members of the
public both locally and internationally. We support this strategic
objective by reaching out to stakeholders through dialogue and active
engagement.

Local Engagement

HKCAAVQ organises different activities to inform the stakeholders
about the latest developments in our services and to promote and
disseminate good practices in quality assurance. We also take the
initiatives to provide trainings, workshops and briefings all year round
to build capacity of our key stakeholders. In the reporting period,
more than 30 activities were held, involving over 1,200 specialists,
panel members and operators from the academic and VPET sectors.

HKCAAVQ co-organises HKQF International
Conference 2018 with EDB & QFS

The EDB and the QFS jointly organised the HKQF International
Conference 2018, with HKCAAVQ as the co-organiser, in celebration
of the 10th anniversary of the HKQF, on 17 September 2018. The
Conference, themed “QF in the Next Decade: Quality, Progression
& Recognition”, presented the QF developments in Hong Kong and
selected places around the world. This included keynote speeches,
plenary discussion forums and parallel sessions in the context of QF
developments.

66 Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
EESMEBEEETER

HWHNEBNSE

MEBERTHAERERAFNERFE
R BTERETRASIETENR
MER MATEBIHE RIEJIEE -
BT ERPT - B AR LA MBS AR
AT ZFBRMANEERELE-RME
BEFEREREINEE) - BL A MR B
Re

i 2 B

HEREFHERSIEES  AFNE
NBFEREFRBEN  AREER
BFEERRBIENRTIEEER 5
ERMTREFEARFEREHAEI - TE
B RERE A SO EEE S AN
%Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁm'ﬁgﬁﬁmﬁ@
0L EE) 2 HEMER - /NEKE K&
mEREE m&%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂJ%
HiEBiE1,200A °

FERGEAE R EFELE
WEBEWEBEFREL
BE#2018

BRENBBEREBNLTEF 5
BR2018F9A17H BB E ERIBWER
AP TERHREEEFEEBERS
F018-EHU [ EFEEBTFRE
Bx R R AEE BMAERESR
BEDTBMBER LEMENER -&
BORREEFEEEROEEEE
HaimiE URBEED ZIREN -



HKCAAVQ Council Member shares his view
on qualifications frameworks

HKCAAVQ Council Member Professor James Calleja, also the
Principal and CEO of Malta College of Arts, Science and Technology,
delivered a presentation titled “The Link Between Qualifications
Framework and Validation Arrangements” at a roundtable session
which took place at HKCAAVQ office on 23 May 2018.

During the session, Prof Calleja shared his insights into the
fundamental values of informal learning, challenges in validation
arrangements and the different evidence requirements in the validation
of formal and informal learning, as well as giving examples of
validation arrangements from Portugal, Italy, France and Iceland.

The minds opening presentation was attended by HKCAAVQ Council
Members, representatives from the Qualifications Frameworks
Secretariat and HKCAAVQ colleagues, who have keen interest in how
formal and informal learning take place in other jurisdictions and their
recognition mechanisms. The presentation of Professor Calleja was
followed by an Q&A session which also aroused much attention and
discussions among the participants.
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Joint conference with FSTE on Striving for
Quality Education

On 1 June 2018, HKCAAVQ again joined as an Associate Organiser
of this significant annual conference of the Federation for Self-
financing Tertiary Education (FSTE), themed “Striving for Quality
Education” at the PolyU Hung Hom Bay Campus.

Professor Peter Yuen, Chairman of the FSTE, and Mr Albert Chow,
Executive Director of HKCAAVQ, made welcoming address and
opening remarks at the beginning of the conference. In his keynote
speech, Professor Anthony Cheung, Chairman of the Committee
on Self-financing Post-secondary Education, gave an overview of
self-financing post-secondary education’s latest landscape and
development, and shared his observations and suggested possible
ways forward for raising the support for institutions and students as
well as the future development of the sector.

The Conference aims at facilitating the interflow of good
practices in quality assurance and pedagogy, student support
and staff development. The Conference was attended by over
200 representatives of the higher education, and vocational and
professional education and training institutions.
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HKCAAVQ Annual Event 2018

HKCAAVQ hosted its Annual Event 2018, themed “shaping the future
@ 10th anniversary of Qualifications Framework”, in Holiday Inn
Golden Mile, Tsim Sha Tsui on 13 November 2018.

The event, co-organised with the Education Bureau, aimed at
promoting the understanding and appreciation by key stakeholders
of the development of Hong Kong Qualifications Framework
(HKQF). One of the highlights of the event was the launch of the
Credit Accumulation and Transfer (CAT) centralised database on
the Qualifications Register (QR), officiated by Mr Kevin Yeung JP,
Secretary for Education; Professor Peter Yuen, Member of the Project
Advisory Group (PAG) of the CAT Database; Ir Dr Alex Chan, Council
Chairman of HKCAAVQ; and Mr Albert Chow, Executive Director
of HKCAAVQ. The launching ceremony was then followed by an
interactive dialogue between PAG members and a Focus Group
learner representative. A live demonstration of the CAT database
was also in place. The Annual Event was attended by over 300
representatives from the education and training sector, as well as
Specialists and partnering organizations.
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Student Liaison Meetings

Similar to previous year’s practice, HKCAAVQ invited accredited
higher education institutions to nominate up to two representatives
from their student body to participate in HKCAAVQ's student liaison
meetings. Four meetings were held on 27 October 2017, 16 March, 6
July and 14 December 2018 with the participation of over 20 student
representatives from more than 12 self-financing institutions in each
meeting. In the meetings, HKCAAVQ introduced its services, Four-
Stage QA Process, accreditation criteria and details of the process of
accreditation, and explored ways in which students may provide input
to HKCAAVQ's quality assurance process.

To bring in an international perspective to student engagement,
HKCAAVQ invited Dr Sadie Heckenberg, President of the National
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Postgraduate Association in
Australia to participate in the December 2018 meeting, via Skype.
She shared with students the importance of the student voice and her
valuable experience in quality assurance engagement in Australia.

Looking ahead, HKCAAVQ would continue to organise various
activities for students to broaden their knowledge and understanding
of the QA process of higher education. Activities in the pipeline
include thematic workshops, “Dialogue with HKCAAVQ Specialist”,
and summer internships that will provide an opportunity for students
to gain direct exposure to the work of HKCAAVQ. HKCAAVQ is
committed to providing a platform to engage students and enhance
their quality assurance knowledge.
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Other activities and communication
platforms

HKCAAVQ also participated in activities and events hosted by
partner organisations and the Government. That were in addition to
the staging of HKCAAVQ Annual Dinners every September which
were well attended by government officials, figures and leaders
from industries and academia, and representatives from partner
organisations and networks.

HKCAAVQ nurtures its close working relationship with the quality
assurance community in Hong Kong and reinforces the mutual
understanding of accreditation processes with the local and
international communities through newsletters and websites.
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International Engagement

HKCAAVQ Council Member gives keynote
address at INQAAHE Conference

INQAAHE’s 11th Biennial Forum, themed “Quality is in the Eye of
the Beholder: Relevance, Credibility, and International Visibility”,
was held at the Le Meridien Hotel, Mauritius, from 2-4 May 2018.
The forum comprised two keynote addresses and lively discussion
sessions. Professor Bjern Stensaker of the University of Oslo, also
Council Member of HKCAAVQ, delivered his keynote address at the
Conference, in which he shared his thoughts on quality and battle for
legitimacy and disputes. Professor Stensaker also identified key global
agendas currently linked to the role of Quality Assurance (QA) in the
governance of higher education, dependencies among key factors
within the field, and gave an insight on possible directions of QA in the
years to come.
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HKCAAVQ speaks at Going Global 2018

HKCAAVQ attended the Going Global annual conference on 2-4
May 2018. The theme of the conference was “Global connections,
local impact: Creating 21st century skills, knowledge and impact for
society-wide good”. Dr Joe Hong, Registrar of HKCAAVQ was invited
to share experiences on accreditation of online learning programmes
in the Panel session — TNE quality assurance: a collaborative
approach.

Panelists from agencies and institutions in four countries/regions
explored how the rapid development of online education has brought
about challenges and opportunities for both institutions and quality
assurance agencies and how these issues were being addressed
through collaborative arrangements. HKCAAVQ's development of its
approach to online learning programme accreditation was presented
and well received by the audience at the Panel session.

Engagement and Collaboration
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Executive Director of HKCAAVQ elected as
one of the Directors of CBQAN

CBQAN held its 1st Council Meeting cum 2nd General Assembly in
Ireland on 19 December, 2018. During the meeting, the first Council
of CBQAN was constituted and approved. Executive Director of
HKCAAVQ, Mr Albert Chow, was elected as one of the Directors of
the Network.

HKCAAVQ renews MoU with QQ/

HKCAAVQ renewed its MoU with Quality and Qualifications
Ireland (QQ)), marking another important milestone for the strong
collaboration between the two agencies. The re-signing ceremony
took place at the Central Government Offices of Hong Kong SAR
on 18 September 2018 and was officiated by Dr Padraig Walsh,
Chief Executive of QQIl, and Mr Albert Chow, Executive Director
of HKCAAVQ. HKCAAVQ has been collaborating with QQI in the
field of quality assurance and sharing of good practices from both
jurisdictions, and the previous years of success in the exchange
of experience and new ideas have also proven the importance of
continued engagement and collaboration.
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HKCAAVQ renews MoA with Knowledge and FFE G B FEAF R A ) &

Human Development Authority (KHDA) BB 53 =457
HKCAAVQ renewed the Memorandum of Agreement (MoA) with HoO15F B IRER & IBERELEA
Knowledge and Human Development Authority (KHDA), UAE on R ANEREIR2018F5A38 X
3 May 2018, after the MoA was first signed in 2015. The signing BB T R ARBEEAHTE
ceremony was officiated by Dr Warren Fox (Chief of Higher Education, MBRA N BRI EHRE EE Warren
KHDA) & Mr Albert Chow, Executive Director of HKCAAVQ. The FoxBEt RAERERERAELLEE
MoA aims at continuing work towards establishing a collaborative BeoRAE e EEBERCE T HE
partnership to enhance external quality assurance in both WEIE BEEBRMENERREL
jurisdictions, as well as improving the quality of higher education in e EMRAEEREHRE RIEFFLL
Hong Kong and private education in Dubai. HERWHE %
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Exchanges with the Korean Skills Quality
Authority (KSQA)

HKCAAVQ delegation, led by Executive Director Mr Albert Chow,
attended and spoke at the International Forum for VET Statutory
Institutions hosted by KSQA in Seoul on 20 December 2018, with
the theme of “Quality Assurance of Vocational Education and Training
through International Cooperation”.

Taking this opportunity, a meeting was held among KSQA, the
Qualifications Framework Secretariat (QFS) of Hong Kong and
HKCAAVQ to explore opportunities for further exchanges and
possible collaborations between the two QA agencies. It was planned
that a regular dialogue will be established to facilitate on-going
communications and discussions on topics of mutual interest.

Following that, a delegation from KSQA visited HKCAAVQ and our
major stakeholders in Hong Kong, including the QFS, Employees
Retraining Board, Hong Kong Police College and MTR Academy (HK)
Company Limited in March 2019.
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Visit to the Department of Education of
Guangdong Province

A delegation from HKCAAVQ and QFS conducted a visit to the
Department of Education of Guangdong Province on 10 and 14
January 2019. During the visit, the delegation met representatives
from the Office of Guangdong Education Department, Guangdong
Academy of Education, Guangdong Occupational Skill Testing
Authority, Guangdong Academic Credit Bank, and the Open
University of Guangdong.

Led by Executive Director Mr Albert Chow, the delegation of
HKCAAVQ shared HKCAAVQ's roles and experience in supporting
the development and implementation of the HKQF. The visit also
provided HKCAAVQ a deeper understanding on the outlook of
the education system in the Guangdong Province and the latest
development of the QF in Guangdong, which paved the way for future
exchanges on the quality assurance systems in both places.

Engagement and Collaboration
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Engagement and Collaboration

HOEBNMEHE

HKCAAVQ pays courtesy visit to QA
agencies and education institution in Beijing

Led by Executive Director Mr Albert Chow, HKCAAVQ'’s delegation
conducted a 2-day duty visit from 7-8 March 2019, at Beijing to meet
with education and training organisations, quality assurance agency
and relevant government department, to exchange ideas and share
experience in terms of quality assurance in the higher education sec
tor, non-local courses and qualifications assessment.

During the visit, the delegation met with representatives of the China
Academic Degrees and Graduate Education Development Center
(CDGDC). Dr Huang Bao Yin, Director of the Centre, introduced future
development plans of the centre and gave an overview on the latest
policies and developments of higher education in mainland China.
Both parties also touch-based on possible collaborations in areas of
mutual interest, including the composition of international experts,
staff exchange, engaging in quality assurance work and long-term
strategic collaboration projects.

HKCAAVQ also met with representatives of the Chinese Service
Center for Scholarly Exchange (CSCSE), in which both parties had
thorough discussions and exchange of ideas in terms of qualifications
assessment, sharing of practical experiences and professional
knowledge. On the basis of mutual benefit, both parties also
discussed on topics including collaborations in terms of qualifications
assessment and joint projects, including knowledge transfer and staff
exchange, in the future.

Apart from visiting the above organisations, the delegation also
visited the regulatory body of Chinese-foreign cooperation in running
schools, as well as Sino-French Engineer School, Beihang University,
to understand more about development opportunities and possible
challenges regarding collaboration of courses between China and
overseas.
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HKCAAVQ attends TVET Conference in
Singapore

A delegation of HKCAAVQ attended the Singapore International TVET
Conference 2019 between 3 and 5 October 2018. Organised by the
Institute of Technical Education Singapore, the main theme of the
Conference was about the skills and learning required for the future
workplace and how VPET institutions could collaborate with industries
to prepare the workforce for the challenges under the transformation.
The delegates also took the opportunity to pay a courtesy visit to
our counterpart, SkillsFuture Singapore (SSG) to exchange the best
practices of quality assurance in both jurisdictions as well as update
our latest development.

SINGAPORE
INTERNATIONAL TVET
CONFERENCE 2018

3 - 4 OCTOBER 2018

Fogararmt by d
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HKCAAVQ delegation visits Thailand

HKCAAVQ delegation attended the European Union Support to
Higher Education in the ASEAN Region (SHARE) Conference on
QF and QA “Preparing for the Future: The Role of ASEAN (Higher)
Education Frameworks in a Disruptive World” in October 2018.

The purposes of attending the Conference were to learn about the
latest development of the ASEAN Quialifications Reference Framework
(AQRF) and the synchronisation between National Qualifications
Framework (NQFs) in ASEAN and other Regional Qualifications
Framework (RQFs).

Apart from attending the Conference, the delegates also visited
Thailand Professional Qualification Institute (TPQI) and an accredited
assessment centre for care workers. While learning the professional
qualification system and professional standard developed by TPQI,
the delegates shared the latest development of HKCAAVQ, in
particular the accreditation of assessment agencies for professional
qualifications and online programme accreditation.

Engagement and Collaboration

HONEBNSHE

P& 12 B 2 55 AR A

ETVETE

R2019F10 ASH =5 HifE - FEER/RR
XEHE RTINS TESE Sl RN
3 b0 B EE R T 20 A L1 5 B B A A
éﬁf)%)’ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂ‘@%%?%ﬂ@ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@
e MEE U MBEE S HEHED
HEETT%}E%E/\VF BB R DS
L GT A o 1&%.%%%7% EEE
Sh R G MRS 3T D3 K 2R 1 BE (SkillsFuture
Singapore)’ & 7 R/t i E = {RE T1E
MEEED  RELEASHERE-

P& % B 27 F B

S BA2018E 10 HERM B ISE
B EEHAE T E(SHARE) R It~ B &
#IEAK KRB (BF)HBEER
FREANAR] FiBEFRENE
=ZRBABENZE-

WTZEEBENARERHTERSE
fEZR (AQRF)ZE—%)%%*}E 5t LA K 25 48
I Hh [ A B 5K & R R4 (NQFs) ER EL B [
& FRBRQF)EE LR A 1TE

RELEZBEERZORS  FERI
%EETa\liiéf%ﬁPQI)&@J it
RO ZEEEBERPLETER-RT
RTPQINE MR 2 BEERE XK NIT
¥ZENRR KREXBITHSZTHER
MERFER BIEEEERTAEET
ENE FRRTE-

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications 79

BEBMEMEERETER




Engagement and Collaboration

HOMEBNEHE

HKCAAVQ speaks at Quality Assurance
Agency for Higher Education (QAA) Annual
Conference in UK

The then Deputy Executive Director (Academic) was invited by the
Quality Assurance Agency for Higher Education (QAA) to their Annual
Conference, themed Delivering Impact through Innovation, which took
place in Cardi, the United Kingdom in April 2018.

At the conference, the then Deputy Executive Director of HKCAAVQ
and Manager (International) of QAA jointly-presented at a breakout
session on the topic “Transnational education (TNE) — Ireland and
Hong Kong”. HKCAAVQ shared our approach to accreditation of
non-local learning programmes and operating environment of TNE
partnerships in Hong Kong, and updated the participants with the
TNE developments and regulatory arrangements in Hong Kong.
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HKCAAVQ presents at Tertiary Education
Quality and Standards Agency (TEQSA)
Conference 2018

The then Deputy Executive Director (Academic) and a Registrar
of HKCAAVQ presented a joint paper titled “Collaborative Cross-
border Joint Quality Assurance: Pilot Exercise by Hong Kong and UK
Quality Assurance Agencies” at the TEQSA Conference 2018. The
paper presented the process, benefits and challenges as well as the
experience gained in the conduct of joint reviews by the UK Quality
Assurance Agency for Higher Education (QAA) and HKCAAVQ for
transnational education provision of UK universities in Hong Kong
in April and May 2018. The approach developed and tested out in
the joint review by the two agencies not only reduced duplication
of efforts, but also provided the basis for mutual recognition of
HKCAAVQ accreditation decisions by UK QAA.

Engagement and Collaboration
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Engagement and Collaboration

HHNEBNESHE

HKCAAVQ attends European Network of
Quality Assurance Agencies (ENQA) Seminar
for Agencies Preparing for an Initial External
Review

In line with the Education Bureau’s initiative of benchmarking
the HKQF with the European Qualifications Framework (EQF),
HKCAAVQ has been exploring the possibility of undergoing agency
review by the European Association for Quality Assurance in Higher
Education (ENQA) against its Standards and Guidelines for Quality
Assurance in the European Higher Education Area (ESG). We
envisage that undergoing an ENQA agency review would be another
fruitful experience for HKCAAVQ after the 2015 external review by
INQAAHE.

In September 2018, HKCAAVQ representatives participated in an
ENQA seminar held in Riga, Latvia, for QA agencies to understand the
ENQA review requirements and process. At the seminar, participants
were briefed the purpose and objectives of the review process and
introduced the best practices relating to self-assessment process
and how the ENQA agency review could assist future planning
and development of a QA agency. The seminar also provided an
opportunity for participants to learn from the agencies’ representatives
that underwent an ENQA agency review.
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Engagement and Collaboration

HIMNEBNEE

Attachment Visit to National Institution B HEBE L THEAALE
for Academic Degrees and Quality HEZE - B REAHIE
Enhancement of Higher Education (NIAD-
QE) of Japan
HKCAAVQ and NIAD-QE entered into a Memorandum of FPEREBARBILITBUEAARBRERX
Understanding in January 2016 as partner organisations with the REN T EMEE20165F1 AR LR
aim of, among others, establishing a strategic alliance to enhance Btk RABIERHN BB 8K
the operation of external quality assurance in both jurisdictions. Bk BE - DA R pnog 3 AN RIREH) LIE»
Both parties recognise the value of staff exchanges as a means EHREAEIRMNBREEMD =
of exchanging information and expertise as well as providing KERAM MR RE TIRERRKE -
developmental opportunities for staff.
A Registrar of HKCAAVQ visited NIAD-QE’s Takebashi Office and T BT E =T E2018F6 A11E14H
Kodaira Office in Tokyo from 11 to 14 June 2018. At the informative BAfEER) A AN B I TBUE AR B R E X
briefings, in-depth information about NIAD-QE’s evaluation and BN BB N R R AN/
degree-awarding activities in the higher education sector in Japan WER -MPIRRAANREEZNEN G
was shared. HKCAAVQ was invited to conduct presentations on FEADZHERBASEHE AR 6TE
HKCAAVQ accreditation in support of the Hong Kong Qualifications MEBARETE: FERNZENEE
Framework (QF) and Qualifications Register (QR), including the new ERENMEREZMRANFELE 8
developments such as revised accreditation standards and Generic BB REETA BERRBAER
Level Descriptors, and the launch of accreditation service for online HARMEERETERGEHER-
programmes.

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications 83

BEEBMRBREARNER




Qiﬁ“

Engagement and Collaboration

HIMNEBNMESE
HKCAAVQ staff are regularly invited to present keynote speeches and TR R B BRI E L AR RFINE
papers at local and international events. A list of the events attended BUWRREERREXE - HEEHT
is included in the table below: S N
Title of presentation/Theme of conference Presenter(s) Month/Year
EHRER 888 HwE B/ &
INQAAHE Biennial Conference 2019 The then Deputy Executive Director 3/2019
SEHEERRE MBI AR EFEFH2019 (Academic)

R TRIm e E (B1)

Dr Clara Chong, Registrar (Academic
Accreditation and Assessment)

APE (T (BRTE KT R) RRE -

Ms Anne Lau, Registrar
(Research and Training)

FEEM (RRREIN) BFF 2L

APQN Academic Conference 2019 Dr Clara Chong, Registrar (Academic 3/2019
oo Kb [ R A AR 1T 2 5%2019 Accreditation and Assessment)
AT A (BT RaTz) S L

2018 KSQA International Forum for VET Statutory Dr Christina Ng, Head of Vocational and 12/2018
Institutions — Quality Assurance of Vocational Professional Accreditation
Education and Training through International BREF(BERIXERTE)
Cooperation REFEF L
EREEERREME B EYE MR IE
BB 5R 182018
Third Annual TEQSA Conference — Innovation, Dr Clara Chong, Registrar 11/2018
Excellence, Diversity (Academic Accreditation and
BNEEHEEEEZEZSH2018— 8 £ Assessment)
%I ATE M (BT E RaTiz) iR IRE +
10th Higher Education International Conference, Mr Albert Chow, Executive Director 11/2018
Macau BHREFHELLEE
RAZETERSHERR SR
Hong Kong Qualifications Framework International Mr Albert Chow, Executive Director 09/2018
Conference 2018 BHEFEBLLE
EHEERERBEREREH2018
Going Global Conference 2018 - Global Dr Joe Hong, Registrar (Academic 05/2018
Connections, Local Impact Accreditation & Assessment)
Going Global& %2018 FIE E A (Birar s kabz)

REFELT
Quality Assurance Agency for Higher Education The then Deputy Executive Director 04/2018
(QAA) Annual Conference (Academic)
RESEHEERRIRBEFESR RERIE®E (21)
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Future Developments/Priorities

Year 2018/19 was a fruitful year as we continue to contribute to
and actively support developments in the national and global quality
assurance community, as set out in the HKCAAVQ Strategic Plan
2015-2019. Looking forward, we expect to continue to work towards
being recognized as a key player in the national and international
quality assurance community, by playing an active role in further
enhancing the quality of accreditation and assessment and engaging
in international activities in the sector.

On local front, the increasing diversity of client operators amid rapid
development in the society has come into sight and HKCAAVQ vows
to continue to reach out to present our services and work, in respond
to the needs arouse in fast-changing community of quality assurance,
the vocational and professional education and training (VPET) in
particular. More diverse engagement initiatives is expected to be
developed such as strengthening of stakeholder engagement through
new and alternative digital communication means and engagement
with new stakeholder groups, and ongoing enhancement of the
HKCAAVQ website.

HKCAAVQ will also be celebrating its 30th anniversary in 2020 and
series of events and initiatives will take place. It will be a splendid
opportunity for HKCAAVQ to further strengthen relationships with
stakeholders/potential stakeholders, partnering agencies as well as
the general public.

Engagement and Collaboration
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Financial Report Bt % &

Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE COUNCIL MEMBERS OF

HONG KONG COUNCIL FOR ACCREDITATION OF

ACADEMIC AND VOCATIONAL QUALIFICATIONS
BEEEMRBEERTER

(Established under the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of
Academic and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Hong Kong Council
for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications (the
“Council”) set out on pages 91 to 160, which comprise the statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2019, and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in reserves and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Council as at 31 March 2019, and of
its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Council in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications

BYZHEMBES

BERBMEBEEETERKE

(IR (BIEEM R B % BV FE/DIF
#1) ir)

=z
I%\

Az EEM T (AT (M) BT
IR FEO1 2 160HE 1) B 75 ST B %
BEREFER(UTHBIER])Z2VH
HE HMBREREER-_ZE—NF=
A=+ —HUBRAREHEZA LT
EN2ERER FEZHERMNBLSR
EFHER URMBRERM T B2IEE
Be T BRME-

BRRR ZEVBHRREREETES
FHED A EEMH (BFEMBREER)
BEEEQVHRBRTERR -_F—NF
ZA=+—HEMBIRAREBEZA I
FENUBERARRERE

RRER

BZAERBEEESAMASBEMDN (B
BEER) ETRE -RAEZFE
AT AENEEEEARE [ZHENE
BIHR A MBS REBAENEE] BHHR
EE— TR - REBEBBSAMAER
o) CEXGFHEIER TR (AT
BRI RABIRER ACE
TR EMBERERET  RFIE
EFERNENRERT R NEER
RHOMBERIRMER-

BEBMRBMEERETER

I
s,



Financial Report Bt %8| &
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BUYZEMBKES (K)

Other Information

The council members are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

QOur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Council Members
and Those Charged with Governance
for the Financial Statements

The council members are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal control as the
council members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the council members are
responsible for assessing the Council’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the council
members either intend to liquidate the Council or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Council’s financial reporting process.
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Financial Report Bt % 3 &

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 15 of the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic
and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance (Cap. 1150), and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BUYZEMBKES (K)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the council members.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the council members’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Council’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Council to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

20 September 2019
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Financial Report Bt % 3 &

Statement of Comprehensive Income

E2HEHWER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BHE —Z — N F=-A=+—HILEFE

NOTES [t 7% 2019 2018
HK$ & % HKS &
Income ¥ A
Revenue & F WA 90,350,440 89,048,812
Government grants B fiF i B/ 6,092,790 6,047,499
Investment income % & YA 2,034,570 1,126,401
Other income E At LA 13,932 576,042
98,491,732 96,798,754
Expenditures X% H
Staff costs 8 T2~ (60,720,667) (60,363,209)
Administrative expenses 1T & F (12,481,243) (10,408,552)
Direct accreditation/consultancy costs & 1 =¥ 28 B8 f A 2K (9,935,034) (11,297,793)
Council meeting and committee expenses N B &% M & 8 € H (1,028,285) (1,034,073)

(84,165,229)

(83,103,627)

Surplus for the year 7~ £ & t4

14,326,503

13,695,127

Other comprehensive income H fth 2 [ Uk %

ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Hig gt B R BB A -

Available-for-sale equity instruments: 7] fft H & HyfEzs T A
Changes in fair value recognised during the year
REFEBARAABENE

Itern that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

HRETEET S EEZ B HE -

Fair value gain on investments in equity instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“‘FVTOCI”)

NAREBEAEEEZHTAEMEE KRN
BaTAREZ AABEKSR

237,450

3,468,850

Other comprehensive income for the year

REFEHMPE RS

237,450

3,468,850

Total comprehensive income for the year
AFEE2EBREE

14,563,953

17,163,977

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications 9}
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S

Statement of Financial Position

B 85 IR 3 3=

At 31 March 2019 R—ZE—NE=A=+—H

NOTES [ &+ 2019 2018
HK$ &% HKS B ¥
Non-current assets JEREE E
Fixed assets [EE & & 10 8,006,157 9,272,485
Investments & & 11 39,995,060 26,068,517
Deposits paid for fixed assets & F & E L& 12 - 479,820
48,001,217 35,820,822
Current assets REIEE
Accounts and other receivables [& Y BR 2 A1 £ th i U7X 12 10,907,485 15,711,450
Contract assets & #) & &E 13 519,244 =
Bank deposits and cash $R1T1F R M IR & 14 72,094,135 68,226,127
83,520,864 83,937,577
Current liabilities 7 B & &
Deferred government grants 3 & B i 7 B 15 2,617,111 2,858,087
Deferred revenue & iE YA 16 - 18,516,420
Contract liabilities & #9 & & 17 15,771,425 -
Other payables and accruals E 4th & <t BR 3 % fE 51 & 4,869,673 4,317,240
Provision for staff gratuities & T #9% Bl & & 18 4,785,073 2,484,951
28,043,282 28,176,698
Net current assets 7i 81 & & F B 55,477,582 55,760,879
Total assets less current liabilities E E A BB RB & & 103,478,799 91,581,701
Reserves f# & 19
Accumulated surpluses 25t 2 4 97,651,587 78,975,124
Investment revaluation reserve % & & fih {# - 4,112,510
Total reserves #4258 97,651,587 83,087,634
Non-current liabilities 3£ 81 & &
Deferred government grants #& % B fi5 i B 15 3,746,503 5,775,222
Provision for staff gratuities & T 95 Bl & %% 18 2,080,709 2,718,845
5,827,212 8,494,067
103,478,799 91,581,701

The financial statements on pages 91 to 160 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Council members and are signed on its

behalf by:
Chairman
TE
92 Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
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Financial Report Bt % 3 &

Statement of Changes in Reserves
ERHR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE—F— AW F=A=+—HILFE

Investment
Accumulated revaluation
surpluses reserve Total
RE
Rt B& EfhEE &&t
HKS /&1 HKS 78 % HKS A
At 1 April 2017 72201754 R1H 65,279,997 643,660 65,923,657
Surplus for the year &4 & i #4 13,695,127 - 13,695,127
Other comprehensive income for the year
REZHMEERE - 3,468,850 3,468,850
Total comprehensive income for the year
AEREEHREEE 13,695,127 3,468,850 17,163,977
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018
7201834318 M2018F4A1H 78,975,124 4,112,510 83,087,634
Surplus for the year &4 & Z #4 14,326,503 - 14,326,503
Other comprehensive income for the year
AEEZHEMEERE - 237,450 237,450

Total comprehensive income for the year

REFEEWEAR G 14,326,503 237,450 14,563,953
Disposal of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

HEARABEFTEAAZEF AL MPERSZ

BRHTARE 4,349,960 (4,349,960) =
At 31 March 2019 72201943 A31H 97,651,587 = 97,651,587
(%]
LS
'
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S

Statement of Cash Flows
BERESHRK

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HHE =T — N F=A=+—HIEFE

NOTES M it 2019 2018
HK$ &% HKS &1
Surplus for the year 2K F & 2 #4 14,326,503 13,695,127
Adjustments for: FEIE R :
Depreciation #7 & 3,164,008 2,427,531
Dividend income % B WA - (542,190)
Interest income F £ 4 A (2,034,570) (684,211)
Gain on disposal of fixed assets & @& £ & E H U x5 = (10,000
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
EEEEPINKLER RS 15,455,941 14,986,257
Decrease (increase) in accounts and other receivables
JFEE LT B AR R L At M ROk A (3 M) 5,112,772 (2,604,762)
Decrease in contract assets & 494 & & > 57,943 =
(Decrease) increase in deferred government grants
EIEBUT 8 B Rl 2 ) 180 (2,269,695) 696,698
Increase in deferred revenue i SE Y A 38 i1 - 3,608,118
Decrease in contract liabilities & 48 & 4> (3,322,182) =
Increase in other payables and accruals
H At & BR SR AN FE 5T B AR 15 0 552,433 1,318,265
Increase (decrease) in provision for staff gratuities
BTHRMEEAEM ORD) 1,661,986 (1,201,169)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
REEDAENR S FHE 17,249,198 16,803,407
INVESTING ACTIVITIES #% & & &)
Payment for purchase of fixed assets 8 A & & & & {+ 3¢ (1,417,860) (3,609,269)
Payment for deposits for fixed assets B A Bl & & E 1L & 5% - (479,820)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets & & & & & Fr 153 51 18 - 10,000
Proceeds from disposal of investments in equity instruments
HE#R TAREMSHIEA 17,960,650 -
Payment for purchase of financial
assets at amortised costs
RESHKABASREEMNK (31,649,743) -
Payment for purchase of held-to-maturity investments
BARBEEZIHTENK - (8,345,317)
Decrease (increase) in bank deposits with maturity of more than three
months at acquisition
EBA=EA A R HRITFEZORD (Bn) 17,077,194 (15,260,834)
Interest received & Y7 & 1,725,763 565,793
Dividend received B 4% & - 542,190

94 Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
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Financial Report Bt % 3 &

Statement of Cash Flows (c‘ontinued)
HeRESHR (F)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE—F— AW F=A=+—HILFE

NOTES Wit 2019 2018
HK$ & HKS &1
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
RERDEL (ER)HERLFR 3,696,004 (26,577,257)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
R kReFEWIEN OB ) FE 20,945,202 (9,773,850
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF
THE YEAR
FURELREEFEY 34,936,938 44,710,788
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR
FRESRBEESZEEY 14 55,882,140 34,936,938
Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications 95
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 35 R AR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HHE =T — N F=A=+—HIEFE

96

Status of the Council

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and
Vocational Qualifications (the “Council”) is a body corporate
established under the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation
of Academic and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance (Cap.
1150). Under the Accreditation of Academic and Vocational
Qualifications Ordinance (Cap. 592) (the “Ordinance”) the
Council assumes its statutory role as the Accreditation
Authority and Quialification Registry (“QR”) Authority under the
Qualifications Framework (“QF”). As the Accreditation Authority,
the Council is responsible for developing and implementing
the standards and mechanisms for accreditation of academic
and vocational qualifications to underpin the QF and for
organising the accreditation exercises for the purposes as
specified in the Ordinance. The Council also provides advice
to the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the “HKSAR Government”) on the registration of non-
local academic and professional courses, the assessment on
non-local qualifications and also on educational standards and
qualifications generally. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, all other
Members and Executive Director of the Council are appointed
by the Chief Executive of the HKSAR Government. Also, the
determination of accreditation fees, the financial budget and
other operating policies of the Council are approved by the
HKSAR Government. Therefore the Council considers itself to
be a government-related entity.

The registered office address is 10 Siu Sai Wan Road, Chai
Wan, Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Council.

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
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Financial Report Bt % 3 &

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BHE —Z — N F=-A=+—HILEFE

Application of New and 2. ERMIREEFE
Amendments to Hong Kong BRBREER ([F
Financial Reporting Standards BRI EHREER])
(“HKFRSs™)
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that REEBRHEERNHFHTR
are mandatorily effective for the current LIET BB KR EFER
year
The Council has applied the following new and amendments to RAFE  NBEXEANATHE
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public BEFTE A EM ] k&S
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year: A BB BEmEZER:
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments BEVBRE eRIA
ZE BI| 25 05%
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BBME®RE REBZFE Z’JZW
Customers and the related £R|ZE155% = MAEEES
Amendments
HK(FRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and BB (BRE INERZ 5 RIER
Advance Consideration ﬁkiﬁ LR HE
= %% 5’32255%
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement BEMEHRE AR ABEBREIST
of Share-based Payment ERIE2S RPZHERE
Transactions CEREN) A=
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial BB HE RABRBYHHRE
Instruments with HKFRS 4 ERFE45%  ERIBSK- @
Insurance Contracts ({&8ET4) T AMEBIHE
e 9‘]%4%
REE 4
Amendments to HKAS 28  As part of the Annual BT 2L %%ﬂﬁﬁzaﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂu
Improvements to HKFRSs F2858 FEUE B
2014 - 2016 Cycle ({EFTA) 5 :2014-2016
F iR
Amendments to HKAS 40  Transfers of Investment Property BB ER KEEFHERN
SB405% B
CEREN)
Except as described below, the application of the new and Br NPT E SN RANFEFERA
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material A RN 2 BB B mE %
impact on the Council’s financial performance and positions for NS ABRAFERBESF
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in ERPBERBE KRR RxF
these financial statements. VB mMERMEBNEEEEETRNT
@,
Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications 97

BEBMEBEERETER

N




\/ Financial Report B # & &
"y

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSR EE (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HHE=ZZFT— N F=A=+—HILEFE

2. Application of New and

98

Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

21 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts

with Customers

The Council has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations.

The Council has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initially applying this
Standard recognised at the date of initial application,
1 April 2018. Any difference at the date of initial
application is recognised in the opening retained profits
and comparative information has not been restated.
Furthermore, in accordance with the transition provisions
in HKFRS 15, the Council has elected to apply the
Standard retrospectively only to contracts that are
not completed at 1 April 2018. Accordingly, certain
comparative information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under HKAS 18
Revenue and HKAS 11 Construction Coniracts and the
related interpretations.

The Council recognises revenue from the following major
sources which arise from contracts with customers:

° Accreditation services fees

° Advisory services fees

o Consultancy services fees

° Qualifications assessment fees
° Quialifications registry fees

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
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Financial Report Bt % 3 &

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BHE —Z — N F=-A=+—HILEFE

2. Application of New and 2.
Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

21 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (continued)

Information about the Council’'s performance obligations
and the accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 15 are disclosed in notes 3 and 5, respectively.

Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 15

The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the statement of financial position at 1 April
2018. Line items that were not affected by the changes
have not been included.

FEREBMEIREERIZE5
SRELNBNAREOER
MEtHRRNEMBL LA
5 P TSN FESHI IR EE -

BAERE B EIFEER
EISHH R ERE

R-ZF—-NFEOA—BZA
BIRRAKRFPERZEE O
ETHOTRE ETEFEKR

XEBHTE I E-

Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 15 at
31 March 1 April
2018 Reclassification 2018
R=ZB-NF
MmA—H
R=Z-N\F ERERET
=A=+-—H8 ZRISE1555 %
2R EREE EXE EHNKRHEE
HK$ & #& HKS &% HKS 7 H
Deferred revenue iEiE 42 A 18,516,420 (18,516,420) -
Contract assets (Note) & %) & & (Hizt) - 577,187 577,187
Contract liabilities (Note) & #1 & & (Bi3E) = (19,093,607) (19,093,607)
Note: At the date of initial application, unbilled revenue and MizE: RERFER B » B3R
revenue receipt in advance in relation to accreditation AR T S BT E AGEE Y
serwlces of' HK$577:187 and HK$19,093,607, respegtwely, AR B B A T TE AR U
previously included in deferredl rey-elnue were replas&ﬂed to AP R BETT ST B
contract assets and contract liabilities, respectively. y
19,093,607 » . EH
HEZAaNEEREGHNE
f& o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSR EE (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HHE=ZZFT— N F=A=+—HILEFE

2. Application of New and 2. BRAFHEREETE
Amendments to Hong Kong BUKBEERN ([F
Financial Reporting Standards BB REED )
(“HKFRSs”) (continued) (%)

2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts 20 BRAMBHREENE
with Customers (continued) SHERBEFENZ
Wz (&)
Summary of effects arising from initial application BAXEREEBHBEIREER
of HKFRS 15 (continued) EISHHHEME ()
The following tables summarise the impacts of applying TREERBEBMBRESE
HKFRS 15 on the Council’s statement of financial position BI85 HARBE=Z
as at 31 March 2019 and its statement of cash flows for —NFOA=+—B2ZH%
the current year for each of the line items affected. Line MR AR AKBAFEIR
items that were not affected by the changes have not PMERTEXTE YA
been included. Biale TRIABERXE
B 75|18
Impact on the statement of financial position HEBERRRZHE
Amounts
without
application
As reported Adjustments of HKFRS 15
KEER
EHgsHES
11k AR F15E S
HK$ &% HKS A& ¥ HKS B ¥
Current assets B & E
Contract assets & 44 & 519,244 (519,244) =
Current liabilities i 8 & f&
Deferred revenue & SEU A - 15,252,181 15,252,181
Contract liabilities & %7 & (& 15,771,425 (15,771,425) -

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BHE —Z — N F=-A=+—HILEFE

2. Application of New and 2. ERHFG REIEFE
Amendments to Hong Kong BUKBEERN ([F
Financial Reporting Standards BB REED )
(“HKFRSs”) (continued) (%)

2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts 2] EBMBRELERSE
with Customers (continued) ISHRBEFEHNZ
Wz (&)
Summary of effects arising from initial application BAXEREEBHBEIREER
of HKFRS 15 (continued) EISHERZERE (18)
Impact on the statement of cash flows HESHRESHR2FE
Amounts
without
application
As reported Adjustments  of HKFRS 15
KREER
BEBEHEL
Ik AR F15F &K
HKS & HKS B ¥ HKS B
Operating activities & & EE)
Decrease in contract assets & %14 2 i 57,943 (57,943) =
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue
RIEWAIZ A CRL ) (3,264,239) (3,264,239)
Decrease in contract liabilities & 48 & 4> (3,322,182) 3,322,182 =

Note: For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating
activities under indirect method for the year ended 31
March 2019, movements in working capital have been
computed based on opening balances of the statement of
financial position as at 1 April 2018 as disclosed above.

et REREEEREBE—F
—NE=ZA=+—HHK
BERPEDN ORI
E-T-\FEA-RZ
TSR R B0 R R AR AT

HEERANE
L&)
L1
'
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PSR EE (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HHE=ZZFT— N F=A=+—HILEFE

2. Application of New and

Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

(“HKFRS 97)

In the current year, the Council has applied HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for 1) the classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities, 2) expected credit
losses (“ECL”) for financial assets and contract assets and
3) general hedge accounting.

The Council has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with
the transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied
the classification and measurement requirements
(including impairment under ECL model) retrospectively
to instruments that have not been derecognised as at 1
April 2018 (date of initial recognition) and has not applied
the requirements to instruments that have already been
derecognised as at 1 April 2018. The difference between
carrying amounts as at 31 March 2018 and the carrying
amounts as at 1 April 2018 are recognised in the opening
accumulated surpluses and other components of equity,
without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9
are disclosed in note 3.

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BHE —Z — N F=-A=+—HILEFE
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2. Application of New and 2. ER¥E
Amendments to Hong Kong 7t 7%
Financial Reporting Standards %
(“HKFRSs”) (continued) )
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2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 22 BERMBEREER
(“HKFRS 9”) (continued) FOREMIA([E
B KEREERFE
1) (&)

Summary of effects arising from initial application EFE B EREERF
of HKFRS 9 BELEWZEHE

The table below illustrates the classification and TRIM TR ERERR -
measurement (including impairment) of financial assets BN=Z—N\FMH—BiRE
subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at the date BB B 1% 2 Rl S5 95% A
of initial application, 1 April 2018. AR ERIFEIR THTE
HMEERAHeMEENS
mﬂﬁﬁ&ﬁ@lﬁ BAT#EIT 2
HERETE (BIERE) -

Available-
Financial for-sale Equity
Held-to- assets at (“AFS”)  instruments
maturity amortised equity at
investments cost instruments FVTOCI
LAREERE
STERE
REERE BB AHM
BEZE HEZ AfHEZ Z2HEKE
HRE tREE BHIE BHIA
Notes izt HKS B HKS 7 HKS 7t HKS 75

Closing balance at 31 March 2018 under HKAS 39
BREEBEHTERERR-_E-\F=A=+—-HZ
HRHE 8,345,317 - 17,723,200 -

Effect arising from initial application of HKFRS 9:
BEREREAMBREENEINEL2HE:

Reclassification under HKFRS 9
BEEENBREENEIFENEE

From AFS equity instruments A & 2 & T & (@) - - (17,723,200) 17,723,200

From held-to-maturity #8 = 2| £1#% & b (8,345,317) 8,345,317 = =

Opening balance at 1 April 2018 under HKFRS 9

REEBETTEANERN-B—\FNA— Bz BNHE - 8,345,317 - 17,723,200
Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications ]OB
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
M mRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HHE=ZZFT— N F=A=+—HILEFE

2. Application of New and
Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(“HKFRS 9”) (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 9 (continued)

(@  AFS equity instruments

From AFS equity instruments to equity at FVTOCI

The Council elected to present in other
comprehensive income for the fair value changes
of all its equity instruments previously classified
as AFS. This investment is not held for trading
and not expected to be sold in the foreseeable
future. At the date of initial application of HKFRS
9, HK$17,723,200 was reclassified from AFS
investment to equity instruments at FVTOCI. The
accumulated fair value gain of HK$4,112,510
relating to this investment previously carried at fair
value continued to accumulate in the investments
revaluation reserve.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BHE —Z — N F=-A=+—HILEFE

2. Application of New and 2. BRI RZIEF]E
Amendments to Hong Kong BUKBEERN ([F
Financial Reporting Standards BB REED )
(“HKFRSs”) (continued) (%)

2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 22 EBMKREER
(“HKFRS 9”) (continued) FOREMIA([E
B EREERES
1) (&)
Summary of effects arising from initial application EFE B EREERF
of HKFRS 9 (continued) HELEHZEME (F)
(b)  Held-to-maturity investments b) FEEIHKE
Debt instruments previously classified as held-to- SR EABAEEER
maturity investments are reclassified and measured R EMEBLIE ©
at amortised cost upon application of HKFRS 9. JERE B RS %E
The Council intends to hold the assets to maturity to RIZEOSR Iy - EFTH 4R
collect contractual cash flows and these cash flows W SHR AR E o A
consist solely of payments of principal and interest RREEEREEY
on the principal amount outstanding. There was no HR - DERE RS
difference between the previous carrying amount o MzEReERAE
and the revised carrying amount at 1 April 2018. BEX R RERE RF
B -RZE—N\FWA
— B Z 1A BR A (B
BRI EMEmEZHE
REER-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HHE=ZZFT— N F=A=+—HILEFE

2. Application of New and

106

Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

(“HKFRS 9”) (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application
of HKFRS 9 (continued)

Impairment under ECL model

The Council applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all accounts
receivable. Except for those which had been determined
as credit impaired under HKAS 39, accounts receivable
have been assessed individually with outstanding
significant balances, the remaining balances are grouped
based on internal credit rating.

Except for those which had been determined as credit
impaired under HKAS 39, ECL for other financial assets at
amortised cost, are assessed on 12m ECL basis as there
had been no significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

The application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018 has no
material impact on the financial statements of the Council
with regards to classification and measurement of financial
instruments nor recognised additional impairment loss
allowance as the amounts involved are not material.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BHE —Z — N F=-A=+—HILEFE

Q‘y?r
iy

Application of New and 2. ER¥E
Amendments to Hong Kong 7t 7%
Financial Reporting Standards %
(“HKFRSs”) (continued) )
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New and amendments to HKFRSs in 2 BB ARERAIFET
issue but not yet effective RSB B BB REE
Al
The Council has not early applied the following new and KB ARIZATER A TE B MHE
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet MAREBOFET KRBT BB
effective: TR 2R
HKFRS 16 Leases' HEMBHRE HEE
AE R 21655
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts® BEEMBFERE  RRELS
AR FE1755
HK(FRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax BEMBRE EHERESN
Treatments' R ASE235 T
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business* BBV ERE FEBEER
AERI| 8357
(18%7)
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with BEEVE®HRE AEBAHED
Negative Compensation’ AE B 95 IR A8 R
(18%7) M
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BBV ESRE REEHHEA
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its AR 1055 BhEGE
Associate or Joint Venture? (1857) & NGRS
BB G ==Yl
AERI| 252855 BEHENR
A2
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material® BB LT ER  EEHMERS
and HKAS 8 F19 (BE]) &
BB GEER|
E85% (185])
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or E}%Aﬂr‘;ﬁﬁu REFhrTE
Settlement’ F19% (1B8F])  #BER - 4a
Bk AEE
Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term Interests in Associate i?‘ FErER  EERELE
and Joint Ventures' Fo8% (185]) ZERAZEK -
Hﬁ R
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BBV ESRE BHEUBHRE -
2015 - 2017 Cycle' AR (837]) ERIFE X
#2015 -

20174E A ER" n
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HHE=ZZFT— N F=A=+—HILEFE

2.

108

Application of New and
Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (continued)

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

& Effective for business combination for which the acquisition date

is on or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on
or after 1 January 2020

= Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the Council members anticipate that the application of
all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BHE —Z — N F=-A=+—HILEFE

Application of New and
Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS
17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback
transactions to be determined based on the requirements of
HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the relevant asset
should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes
requirements relating to subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised
for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and
leases of low value assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B SRR MIEE (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HHE=ZZFT— N F=A=+—HILEFE

2.

Application of New and
Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Council currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands
for owned use. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments
in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and
an interest portion which will be presented as financing cash
flows by the Council.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a
finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 March 2019, the Council has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$29 as disclosed in note
22. A preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements
will meet the definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS
16, the Council will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless they
qualify for low value or short-term leases.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BHE —Z — N F=-A=+—HILEFE

Application of New and
Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. The Council intends to elect the practical expedient to
apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and not apply this standard to
contracts that were not previously identified as containing a
lease applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4. Therefore,
the Council will not reassess whether the contracts are, or
contain a lease which already existed prior to the date of
initial application. Furthermore, the Council intends to elect
the modified retrospective approach for the application of
HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect
of initial application to opening retained profits without restating
comparative information.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
Definition of Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of
material by including additional guidance and explanations in
making materiality judgements. The amendments also align the
definition across all HKFRSs and will be mandatorily effective
for the Council’s annual period beginning on 1 January 2020.
The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of
the Council but may affect the presentation and disclosures in
the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HHE=ZZFT— N F=A=+—HILEFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRSs, the collective term which includes
all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Council takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets.
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- - - . . - AY Y — —d
Significant Accounting Policies 3. FESFHE(8)
(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued) REEXE (1)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value AN S HREmM S - AREE

measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on FERBANBEITEMEH A

the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements BABREERAABHETEN

are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value WABBHHERNEEE S

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows: BE—R BRI E= o B

s

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active . F—REABURIEZEER
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can T2 BHR AEVSMIERE
access at the measurement date; EXEERERMIZHRE

(REFE) :

e level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices e FoRMWABURIEMEEK
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset BEEENEE A RN
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and BMABE (F—RABEN

WERIN) &

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or s FRBMASEBIEEENA
liability. B H) A B ) A BUR ©

The principal accounting policies are set out below. FESFBORENNAT

Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEFEHNzWE (R

(upon application of HKFRS 15 in B M EE2 BV B E 1R R

accordance with transitions in note 2) RAEBMBHREERES

)

Under HKFRS 15, the Council recognises revenue when (or RIE BB B 15 R 45 22 Al 551555

as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of KBRTHKELHEEE (BtLt)

the goods or services underlying the particular performance R RN EROE (TR

obligation is transferred to the customer. VE mak RIS EY [HEHIE | EE T

BPEE-

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a FEA) &% 25 —THAA A7 o 3k

bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct BR7% (kZEMmaR®) S —F

goods or services that are substantially the same. 5\ E B+ R #) B 1 7 am S AR 7S ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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PSR EE (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HHE=ZZFT— N F=A=+—HILEFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of HKFRS 15 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)
(continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Council’s performance as the
Council performs;

° the Council’s performance creates and enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Council performs;
or

o the Council’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Council and the Council has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Council’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Council has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Council’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Council’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Council has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of HKFRS 15 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)
(continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on input method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of the Council’s efforts or inputs
to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the
total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Council’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

Performance obligations for revenue from contracts
with customers

Revenue from accreditation services is recognised over time
using input method.

Revenue from advisory services is recognised over time using
input method.

Revenue from consultancy and qualifications assessment
services are recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains the control of the services.

Revenue from qualifications registry services is recognised over
the contract period when the relevant services are provided by
the Council.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HHE=ZZFT— N F=A=+—HILEFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 April
2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Council and the amount of revenue
and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) fees for rendering of accreditation services to institutions
are recognised in the period to the extent the
accreditation work is performed;

(i)  advisory fees and consultancy fees are recognised in the
period in which such services are rendered;

(i)  fees for rendering of qualifications assessment services
are recognised in the period in which such assessment
work is completed;

(iv) qualifications registry fees are recognised in the period in
which such services are rendered;

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Council and the amount of income can be measured
reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Council
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BHE —Z — N F=-A=+—HILEFE

Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Council will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Council
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Council should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred revenue in the statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Council with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated in the statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method as follows:
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HHE=ZZFT— N F=A=+—HILEFE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Fixed assets (continued)

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Council reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BHE —Z — N F=-A=+—HILEFE

Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Council as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

The Council is exempted from Hong Kong Profits Tax by virtue
of section 87 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Council has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Council will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.
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3.

120

Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Provisions (continued)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is
material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for accounts receivable arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15 since 1 April 2018. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition.
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- - - . . - AY Y — —d
Significant Accounting Policies 3. FESFHE(8)
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) SRT A (&)
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the ERAEERTEEBARSR
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and BESCHABBEZEER ALY
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the BEFIEBA 7% BEMETIR
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that M ERRIREB LA ZEGFF
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments HA Sl F A B PR - YERERA IR S
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of SIARKRBE WA (BEMBEKE
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums BRAEAA KRN 2 EAHE
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or WER - RS R E MR E ST
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the B)EREFEZAE
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Financial assets THEE
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets TRHEER AR ETE (RE
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in Bt 52 19 38 AR A IR B B R 7
note 2) HREEREIEF)
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are W TGt zemEERER
subsequently measured at amortised cost: KAHEXATE:
e the financial asset is held within a business model whose o  EBERANMFEENAKEE
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and HAREREZEMEE &
e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash s  AHBRFTREEBHEAS
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on ZBEEREEATNAE R
the principal amount outstanding. REEXREZHENEHE
E o
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HHE=ZZFT— N F=A=+—HILEFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (continueq)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at Fair value through other
comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit impaired.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BHE —Z — N F=-A=+—HILEFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (continueq)

(i)

Equity instruments at FVTOCI

Investments in equity at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve; and are not subject to impairment assessment.
The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit
or loss on disposal of the equity investments, and will be
transferred to accumulated surpluses/will continue to be
held in the investment revaluation reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Council’s right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “investment
income” line item in profit or loss.
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3.

124

Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Council recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including accounts and other receivables, contract assets
and bank deposits). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Council’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Council always recognises lifetime ECL for accounts
receivable and contract assets. The ECL on these assets are
assessed collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.

For all other instruments, the Council measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Council recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Council compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Council
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the
credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the
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3. Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

126

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (continueqd)

U)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Council presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Council has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Council assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if i) the financial instrument has a low
risk of default (i.e. no default history), i) the counterparty
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and iii) adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term may;,
but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Council regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Council considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Council, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Council).

Irrespective of the above, the Council considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Council has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies 3. TESFBE (F)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) ERMIE(E)
Financial assets (continued) THEE (&)

128

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(i)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

@)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

EREERE (RIZH 25 698
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(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due (b) EBRAELHER WELD
event; S BEHS:

(©) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or ) BEEALREBERE
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s WEFTEHAEZNZE
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a & ET R A B IS R 2 A
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise B AELZES (M
consider; EHEMBERT TS E

ILiE)
(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter @) fEBRABRRENEK

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BHE —Z — N F=-A=+—HILEFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Council writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of accounts receivable, when
the amounts are over two years past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Council’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined by the respective risks of default.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HHE=ZZFT— N F=A=+—HILEFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

120

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (continued)

V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Council in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Council expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
categorised according to the risk type (i.e. credit-impaired,
high risk, normal risk and low risk) by considering:

° Past-due status; and

o Nature, size and industry of debtors.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each category continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Council recognises an impairment loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of accounts receivable where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a
loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BHE —Z — N F=-A=+—HILEFE

Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)

The Council’s financial assets are classified held-to-maturity
investment, AFS investments and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Held-to-maturity investment

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates
that the Council has the positive intent and ability to hold to
maturity.

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment (see accounting policy in respect
of impairment losses on financial assets below).
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HHE=ZZFT— N F=A=+—HILEFE

3.

132

Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as AFS or are not classified as loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss.

Equity and debt instruments held by the Council that are
classified as AFS financial assets and are traded in an active
market are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the carrying amount of AFS monetary
financial assets relating to interest income calculated using the
effective interest method. Dividends on AFS equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Council’s right to
receive the dividends is established. Other changes in the
carrying amount of AFS financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
of investment revaluation reserve. When the investment is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables (including accounts and
other receivables and bank deposits and cash) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment (see accounting policy in respect of on impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BHE —Z — N F=-A=+—HILEFE

Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1 April 2018)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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3.

134

Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1 April 2018) (continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as accounts
receivable, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Council’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period, as well
as observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets that are carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of accounts receivable, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When an account receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against to profit loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BHE —Z — N F=-A=+—HILEFE

Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1 April 2018) (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an
impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation
reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Council are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Council after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Council are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HHE=ZZFT— N F=A=+—HILEFE

3.

126

Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities

The Council’s financial liabilities, including other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition

The Council derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Council derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Council’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BHE —Z — N F=-A=+—HILEFE

4. Key Source of Estimation 4. (HEFTABAEEZENE
Uncertainty ERIR
In the application of the Council’'s accounting policies, which HRAABEFTBERTR (A 3R
are described in note 3, the management are required to make ™) BEREBEEEHTEEAMS R
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying REEMIORHEEMB ERA
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent B I TR ERER - fhET A
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions HERERRENE &8 MIE A
are based on historical experience and other factors that are TR B & - B AER AT AR R
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these ELAHE A o
estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on EEEgYHELMET RS EN
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are BRERETTIHR B - R EFHEET
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the WETRUEFEMEATE
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision ZERTERNEEE R - Ry
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future FHEETRERT g HEE R R
periods. RHAMEETE ZIEFTEREE
B H R R R B T ARERR ©
Key source of estimation uncertainty AT THBEENEER
R
The following is the key assumption concerning the future, LTAEBBERRNEZ®RER
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end WEMRMGET A Eﬂl%ﬂ’\]ﬁﬁﬂ
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing FERIR ATRESEE T — K
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and FEEEBERAAELEAH
liabilities within the next financial year. Ko
Impairment assessment of accounts receivable and JE UG AR 70 B2 4 49 5 19 6L 1B 77 1
contract assets
The Council applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to RBRERABAY R EHERIFEIR
measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all accounts Bl At ERMEERKN 2
receivable and contract assets. Except for those which had EEARWERFNEEFEA
been determined as credit impaired under HKAS 39, accounts TEHIEEEK -BRIBIEE S SFHE
receivable have been assessed individually with outstanding B30 R EHEEEREN
significant balances, the remaining balances are grouped based HEB SN BRI TEEEEEK
on internal credit rating. BIREAREN 2 ERBEEEER]
S - FIEREREER B EME ERER
HITHMHE-
Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications ]37

BEBMEBEERETER

N




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Financial Report B % R &

PSR EE (4)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HHE=ZZFT— N F=A=+—HILEFE

4.

138

Key Source of Estimation
Uncertainty (continued)

Key source of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Impairment assessment of accounts receivable and
contract assets (continued)

The Council uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the
accounts receivable. The provision rates are based on internal
credit ratings as groupings of various debtors that have similar
loss patterns. The provision matrix is based on the Council’s
historical default rates taking into consideration forward-
looking information that is reasonable and supportable available
without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are reassessed and changes
in the forward-looking information are considered. In addition,
accounts receivable and contract assets with significant
balances and credit impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
EESMEBEEETERR

BRI THBERNE
ERIR (&)

CEEOELEEES S EXEN
R (&)

JE W SR 5k B8 B 49 B Y B B AT A
(#)

KB E R AR E B R WA
MFRHEERR - EEHER ARG
EEAER  HABBEUBRE
AT EE A DA - EREREREIA
ARRAEENRLER RS
EREBTEETNLDERART
{ENAI S 2 B I2 3 A] ST IR A A
AR -NEEFE R BT
RAEBRMENE  WEEA
HEMEE R L - LS FEUMRRSK
MEREBEGEABRBEMEER
B R RIFHERMEERK -



Financial Report Bt % 3 &

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BHE —Z — N F=-A=+—HILEFE

5. Revenue

A. For the year ended 31 March 2019

@

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts

5.

A4

A. 2019F3A31H ILF
B

(D REHREFHITEHN

with customers B 75 28 5
Type of services REER
Total
a5t
HKS & #&
Accreditation services fees 7T 2 R 75 & 52,450,279
Advisory services fees 74 5 AR 1% & 9,319,563
Consultancy services fees B [ iR 75 & 10,802,177
Qualifications assessment fees & [E =71 & 13,952,262
Qualifications registry fees & i % it & 3,826,159
Total #& %8 90,350,440
Timing of revenue recognition s 225 e 5 A
Total
a5t
HKS B ¥
At a point in time 72 B FE1 24 24,754,439
Overtime A B fE & 65,596,001
Total #& %8 90,350,440
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HHE=ZZFT— N F=A=+—HILEFE

5. Revenue (continued) 5. W= (HF)
A. For the year ended 31 March 2019 A. 2019F3B31HILF

(continued) E (&)

(i) Transaction price allocated to the remaining (i) DEHZEREHEEFFZH
performance obligation for contracts with AN TG ETER
customers X5 ER
The transaction prices allocated to the remaining RZTE—NLFE=A
unsatisfied performance obligations as at 31 March =+—0 SREFH
2019 are HK$15,771,425 and the expected timing ABTRBHORSE
of recognising revenue is within one year. % B 815,771,425

T TE BRRERR UL A HY B
MAE—FRN-
B. For the year ended 31 March 2018 B. 2018F3A31HILF
E

An analysis of the Council’s revenue for the year is as RBRANFEREDTAOT

follows:

2018
HKS B ¥

Accreditation services fees &1 2 ik 75 & 53,263,667

Advisory and consultancy services fees 74 78 M B8 8 AR 755 & 19,888,411

Qualifications assessment fees & & F (& & 12,359,488

Qualifications registry fees & i % it & 3,537,246

89,048,812

6. Investment Income 6. REWA
2019 2018
HK$ &% HKS B
Interest income F S.Ug A 2,034,570 584,211
Dividend income % B A - 542,190

2,034,570 1,126,401

] 40 Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BHE —Z — N F=-A=+—HILEFE

Other Income 7. Hib A
2019 2018
HKS$ & HKS 75
Review of QF Accreditation & & 5T i AR 75 25 5 & - 470,517
Review of non-QF Accreditation JE & & 514 R 15 2569 & 12,527 6,915
Consultancy fee from external activities 9N EF5% &) 80 2 RS & - 35,258
Foreign exchange gain, net 4MNE& 3 4 Uk 25 7% 58 1,355 53,292
Gain on disposal of fixed assets & F & & & Wz - 10,000
Miscellaneous income £ fib 4z A 50 60
13,932 576,042
Surplus for the Year 8. NEERER
Surplus for the year has been arrived at after charging KEFZRHBER (FFA)
(crediting):
2019 2018
HK$ &% HKS 7 1
Staff costs & Tk A&k
— Salaries, wages and other benefits —# & « T & & 2 th & 7 59,260,116 58,859,847
— Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds — & Il 14 A 18 4 L 7% 1,460,551 1,503,362
60,720,667 60,363,209
Auditor’s remuneration % £t Al B & 287,385 164,300
Depreciation #T & 3,164,008 2,427,531
Minimum lease payments under operating leases & X4 & E % ) 133,237 96,970
Interest income from financial assets at amortised
costs/held-to-maturity debt instruments
BEZIBHERES TREHEKATENSREENT BUWA (1,240,468) (146,499)
'8
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
M mRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HHE=ZZFT— N F=A=+—HILEFE

9. Taxation 9. BiIE
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax had been made in these RER CEBTBIRG) F87i& &
financial statements as the Council is exempted from taxation PR - Bt BEL M ER
pursuant to section 87 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance. RETIRBAFEH -
- 'A_I ~.
10. Fixed Assets 10. BEEE
Furniture
Leasehold and Computer
improvements equipment equipment Total
HEXR RANZRE EKRE “m
HKS 751 HKS /&1 HKS 7 HKS &
COST A A
At 1 April 2017 1R2017464 818 31,083,553 7,182,935 9,022,697 47,289,185
Additions N & - 226,506 4,163,127 4,389,633
Disposals i - (186,800) - (186,800)
At 31 March 2018 1220183831 H 31,083,553 7,222,641 13,185,824 51,492,018
Additions N & - 96,100 1,801,580 1,897,680
Write off 34 - (575,255) - (575,255)
At 31 March 2019 1220193 A31H 31,083,553 6,743,486 14,987,404 52,814,443
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Z:f#7&
At 1 April 2017 18201744818 31,083,553 6,546,508 2,348,741 39,978,802
Charge for the year N E 175 - 471,694 1,955,837 2,427 531
Eliminated on disposals tH & §4 - (186,800) - (186,800)
At 31 March 2018 1220183831 H 31,083,553 6,831,402 4,304,578 42,219,533
Charge for the year A & - 254,467 2,909,541 3,164,008
Wiite off 3 34 - (575,255) - (575,255)
At 31 March 2019 122019F3A31H 31,083,553 6,510,614 7,214,119 44,808,286
NET BOOK VALUE B 38
At 31 March 2019 1220193 A31H - 232,872 7,773,285 8,006,157
At 31 March 2018 20183 A31H - 391,239 8,881,246 9,272,485
] 42 Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
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Financial Report Bt % 3 &

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BRI (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE—F— AW F=A=+—HILFE

Investments N ®E
2019 2018
HK$ 7 #& HKS 7 1
Debt instruments — financial assets at amortised
costs/ held-to-maturity investments
EHELE-IREHEKATEZSREE /BERIHIKEA 39,995,060 8,345,317
Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI/ AFS equity
securities listed in Hong Kong, at fair value
NAREBEFEEHEEZFHFTAEMEZEKGE 2
BT AKRE A LT HBEERAES (RME) - 17,723,200
39,995,060 26,068,517
Analysed as: D17 4
Non-current FE7 &) 39,995,060 26,068,517
Fair value of financial assets at amortised
costs/held-to-maturity investments
REERATEZEREE BEEINHRENAAEE 40,076,165 8,144,520

Accounts and other Receivables

12. B AR A

ftb FE U

TA

2019 2018
HK$ 7% #& HKS 75
Accounts receivable & Ui BE 7k 7,473,981 13,958,726
Deposits, other receivables and prepayments 124 + £ b & U 3 Rz 8 1+ 31 2,857,769 1,485,797
Deposits paid for acquisition of fixed assets & A & E & E X M HIZ & - 479,820
Interest receivable [& U Fl & 575,735 266,927
10,907,485 16,191,270

Less: Deposits paid for acquisition of fixed assets classified

under non-current assets

BN BEAIRBDEENBABTEES MNiLE - (479,820)
10,907,485 15,711,450

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HHE=ZZFT— N F=A=+—HILEFE

12.

144

Accounts and other Receivables
(continued)

As at 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2018, accounts receivable
from contracts with customers amounted to HK$7,473,981 and
HK$13,958,726 respectively.

As at 31 March 2019, included in the Council’s accounts
receivable balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of HK$4,903,941 which are past due as at the reporting
date. Out of the past due balances, HK$469,720 has been
past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default
by considering the background of the debtors, subsequent
settlement, historical payment arrangement and credit standing
of these accounts receivable.

As at 31 March 2018, 82% of the accounts receivable that are
neither past due nor impaired have the best credit standing
under the credit assessment made by the management of
the Council and the Council considered that these accounts
receivable have no adverse change in the credit standing of the
debtors subsequent to the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2018, included in the Council’s accounts
receivable balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of HK$2,495,481 which are past due as at the reporting date
for which the Council has not provided for impairment loss
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality of
the accounts receivable and the amounts are still considered
recoverable. The Council does not hold any collateral over
these balances and no interest is charged on overdue accounts
receivable.

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
EESMEBEEETERR
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A—TE—NE=A=1+—"H &R
JERBE R BIEEBAESE
HwEABBRNERBRE RSB
4,903,9417T » 7£ 8 5 H) B B g4 58
mh B 460,720 O AR B HA R 1B
AN £ EEFNEFEANE
BRERE  AENREZHERNE
LI BR KA EE MR - TR B
EH o

R_E-N\F=ZA=+—8"
82%HY & U5 AR SR BT K 280 BA 4 K B
ERE REAREREBNERR
i BLRBEFRNEERNIER
Rif - RBRBA  EATRE P B
B2 1% - B LU BR KBTS ARI(E
BRI TR B o

RZEBE—NF=A=1+—H &
JEWRBE R BIEEBAESE
HwEABBRNERBREAEE
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13.

Financial Report Bt % 3 &

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE—F— AW F=A=+—HILFE

Accounts and other Receivables
(continued)

The following is the aging analysis of accounts receivable which
are past due but not impaired:

12. FE U Bk F0CA HL 4t UL

()

& #8188 3 R (E A U BR SR EY
FRECDITEAT

31 March
2018
20184
3H31H
HKS & H

Within 30 days 30X A
Over 30 days B B30X

2,092,011
403,470

2,495,481

Details of impairment assessment as at 31 March 2019 are set
out in note 21.

Contract Assets

BE_ZT-NAF=A=+—HHK
BER AR R T2 -

13. ENEE

As at As at

31 March 1 April
2019 2018*

R2019F 20184
3H31H 4/18*

HKS$ 7 & HKS 7 H

Accreditation services &1 i 75 519,244 577,187

o The amount in this column is after the adjustment from the
application of HKFRS 15.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Council’'s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because the
rights are conditioned on the Council’s future performance. The
contract assets are transferred to accounts receivable when the
rights become unconditional.

* RSB REREBTERE
ERFISFEHABEN S
LER

BHMEBEEXIR S RARBEKER
EXKIEERESENRE
REEEMURBARREKR B G
- ERMNZREENE G0E
ESEERUIRA -

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications ]45
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
M mRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HHE=ZZFT— N F=A=+—HILEFE

) P Al =%
14. Bank Deposits and Cash 4. BT ERERRES
2019 2018
HK$ 7% HKS &1
Deposits with banks #7177 #3715 5K 50,724,359 53,322,296
Cash at bank and other financial institutions and in hand
B RIRITSCE Mt B B s 17 3K 21,369,776 14,903,831
Bank deposits and cash in the statement of financial position
MM ERFARARITERERIRE 72,094,135 68,226,127
Less: Bank deposits with maturity of more than three months at acquisition
W FERE AR =B A A LR BRI IRITIE K (16,211,995)  (33,289,189)
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows
RemBXRATNRERBEEEED 55,882,140 34,936,938
15. Deferred Government Grants 15. IEE BUS @ BY
2019 2018
HKS$ 7 & HKS /&%
Balance as at 1 April 734 818 B 4 & 8,633,309 7,936,611
Grants received and receivable = Y K J& U 48 BY 823,095 3,216,036
Interest thereon FE=tF &, - 8,666
Recognised as income during the year & A 2 #ER &I A (3,092,790) (2,528,004)
Balance as at 31 March A3 A31H & 4 & 6,363,614 8,633,309
Less: Amount shown under current liabilities J3 : BB EHE NI R IERNEEE (2,617,111) (2,858,087)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities 3ER B B EI1B T iEH & 58 3,746,503 5,775,222
The grants are for supporting the costs of the Qualify WEARE M ERIEA IR S
Enhancement Support Scheme projects. T8 B BN o
]46 Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
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16. Deferred Revenue

17.

Deferred revenue represents amounts billed or received for
programme accreditation, advice on the registration of non-
local courses and qualifications assessment, less amounts
recognised as income during the year.

Contract Liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Council’s contract liabilities:

16.

17.

i FE A

BN BF AR RIZTE AR
FEZR 4 SRAR FE M AN B E AP SR
BRMARSIMEE S ER - LR
FRAEBRRBRRANESREFTE -

BRERE

ABRzEHABIWMT:

As at As at

31 March 1 April
2019 2018

H2019F 20184
3H31H 4H18*

HK$ &% HKS 7 1

Accreditation services fees 525 iR 1% & 9,538,332 14,003,454
Consultancy services fees & [ AR 75 £ 333,000 386,000
Qualifications assessment fees & E 114 & 2,574,390 1,934,049
Quialifications registry fees & & % fiit & 3,325,703 2,770,104
Total &5t 15,771,425 19,093,607

*

The amount in this column is after the adjustment from the
application of HKFRS 15.

The contract liabilities at 1 April 2018 were fully recognised as
revenue in the current year.

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HHE=ZZFT— N F=A=+—HILEFE

18. Provision for Staff Gratuities

19.

148

18. ET W MmN &€ &

2019 2018
HK$ & HKS 7

Balance as at 1 April R4 81H
Provision made 2 # % &
Provision utilised & F 2

5,203,796 6,404,965
4,706,536 3,536,011
(3,044,550) (4,737,180

Balance as at 31 March »3A31H

Less:

Amount shown under current liabilities

BoRBRER NIEENSE

6,865,782 5,203,796

(4,785,073)  (2,484,951)

Amount shown under non-current liabilities

FRBAEERNIEENSHE

2,080,709 2,718,845

Reserves

(a)

(b)

Components of the Council’s
reserves

The opening and closing balances of each component
of the Council’'s reserves and reconciliation between
these amounts are set out in the statement of changes in
reserves.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
instrument at FVTOCI (2018: AFS equity instruments)
held at the end of the reporting period and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies in note 3.

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
EESMEBEEETERR

19. {#1E
(a) & BHEEE M E R

REEBRIITARE R
B R ) F B F R 8
AR Bt &5 R ER
Z B EE Rk -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BHE —Z — N F=-A=+—HILEFE

20.Capital Risk Management

21.

Since the Council is not profit-oriented and is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements, its primary financial
and capital management objectives are to maintain a balance
between annual income and expenditure, so that it has the
ability to operate as a going concern and perform its statutory
roles and functions. The Council is primarily financed through
the charging of fees for academic and vocational accreditation
services rendered which include validations, revalidations,
institutional reviews, qualifications assessments and advisory/
consultancy services. Any operating surplus shall be carried
forward to the following financial year to meet future expenditure
required for the operations of the Council.

The Council’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
years. The capital structure of the Council consists of cash and
cash equivalents and accumulated surpluses.

Financial Instruments

Categories of financial instruments

20. 5K A EE

HRA BRI R 8 =S R E
AN REE AR RS - H AN BH S
REAEENEIERRRERE
FUST T - AREIRBE S B AL &
WHKEES M B HOATE A G EY
NBEITEERE -ARNEST
ZREMBEERNBM LB EEE
APERGEENER  AEREE
REE ENDE R B
FERT Ak DA 53, B R AR 7S © 1]
LERRAREERENMBF
B AN R DS BT
Fo

ARHNEEBRBEEFES T
o ARHNEARERERE KR
TEEBY R R RS

2. €@ TR

TR T RAER

2019 2018
HKS$ & HKS$ & &

Financial assets £ @& &

Held-to-maturity investments 5 8 £ 2| #1i% & - 8,345,317

AFS investments A i HH &% & - 17,723,200

Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents)

ERREYFIE (BEReRESEEY) - 82,882,276

Financial assets at amortised cost % ## $i5 5k N1 E £ gh & & 122,996,680 =
122,996,680 108,950,793

Financial liabilities £ @i & &

Amortised cost B2 # 5k 2 3,165,441 3,210,919

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
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21.

150

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Council’s major financial instruments include debt
instruments classified as financial assets at amortised cost,
accounts and other receivables, bank deposits and cash
and other payables. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Currency risk

The Council has the foreign currency denominated debt
instruments classifies as financial assets at amortised cost,
which expose the Council to foreign currency risk. The Council
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange exposure
should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Council’s foreign currency
denominated monetary asset at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

2. R T A (&)

MEREREREB SRR

AERHFZeMIABERESE
REBHEKAAESREES BN
BT A - ERUARR S E A UK
B RITER MRS R EAER R
B zFeRITANFBREIER
M - Bz E e T AFRN
Rk aEmsER (SMNERER) -
FERREABDETRAR -EH
A fe] & 5% 5 R B ) BR300
ToEEEEEMEEZFRLR
VATE (R AT B2 B 078 ROt SR EUE B

It
7
SR R

HRABEEAINET BN DA
RILEHERAGFESREENE
F5 T A - [ 51 LR o 3 A
AR EBDEBINELPBER - BH
FER  BEESHINERBREY)

1=
BEE-

HAEHAR - AN BUASNEH B E
BERBEENT

Assets
&E
2019 2018
HK$ /&% HK$ B &

United States dollars (‘USD”) =7t

39,995,060 8,345,317

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
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21. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The management considers that, as HK$ is pegged to USD, the
Council is not subject to significant foreign currency risk from
change in foreign exchange rate of USD against HK$.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 March 2019, the Council’'s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Council due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the statement of financial position.

Accounts receivable and contract assets arising from contracts
with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Council has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
over the customers to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Council reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debtor at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate allowance are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In addition, the Council performs
impairment assessment under ECL model upon application
of HKFRS 9 (2018: incurred loss model) on trade balances
based on provision matrix. In this regard, the management of
the Council consider that the Council’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The Council’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. At the end of
the reporting period, the Council had a certain concentration of
credit risk as 50% and 77% (2018: 21% and 51%) of the total
accounts receivable that were due from the largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively.

21. €T B (&)

MBEREEERERBEE

(&
wigm s ()
SMERSR (4)
BRBE AW

BEERS ARBEEITH
) ANBIARAE FICH B R R
BimEHNEARIMNERL

1= B /2 e B2 gL (B 7T 1

—NE=A=+—B " &B
E%E$Eﬁ§&ﬁ%$%§§
MBBERNRREERRIIME
#ﬁ%%ﬂ%%ﬁ%aﬁ%%ﬁ
BEMRmE-

K EHE R & RIA BRI
BHEE

SEEREKEERR AREEE
E%El%ﬁaﬂ Zﬁ%ﬁfu
EMZ R AR HERIREL
R A FE e DA W () S ER 5 08 o it S
ABREHERREHS @R E
SEENIRE R - FRATH
Yo Bl & B R SIRORAER © el
RIBFEME M HRE LR FS5R
(ZF- )\ BBLEBXREI) 2
ENEHEENR ZHE  NHIR
RIEMEERRELVEITRUERT
st s  AEEEERRAN
REEERRE KEMGEE-

AREEBRHNEERREESEE
%Eﬁmﬁﬂﬁwa Fﬁiﬁ
K ABRGFEEFEERR &K
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21%HM51% ) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
M mRME (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HHE=ZZFT— N F=A=+—HILEFE

21. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
Other receivables and bank deposits

The credit risks on other receivables are insignificant as the
management of the Council periodically monitors the balances
to ensure that the counterparties are viable to settle the debts.

Bank deposits are normally placed with financial institutions
which have good credit ratings. Investments in debt instruments
are with counterparties of sound credit ratings. Given their high
credit ratings, management does not expect any investment
counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

Debt instruments at amortised cost

The Council only invests in debt instruments with low credit
risk. The Council’s debt instruments at amortised cost mainly
comprise of bond issued by listed companies that are graded in
the top investment grade as per globally understood definitions
and therefore are considered to be low credit risk investment.
The management of the Council therefore considered the credit
risks are insignificant.

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
EESMEBEEETERR
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Notes to the Fi

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE — %

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The Council’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises

the following categories:

Internal credit
rating

Description

Financial Report Bt % 3 &

nancial Statements (continued)
MR (&)

—NF=ZA=+—HLFE

21. €T B (&)

BHREREEBRREREE
(%)

=B /m f 5 a (e 7T 18 ()

RBEAREER
VAT #E R

ERFEBRE

Accounts receivable/ Other
contract assets financial assets

AR5 E PR B BWER EHEE HteBmEE

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL

1K 3 B default and does not have any past- not credit-impaired 128 A RFEHAE BBk
due amounts BEFEBAANBREER
REVFEHVRAREK SEEMNAES BRX-EFERRE
G-

Normal risk Debtor frequently repays after due Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL

— R R dates but usually settle after due date not credit-impaired 128 A ATEHRE B8k

BERAREHEDMAZREN ERE
FEIHR 2 REE

High risk
= AR

There have been significant increases
in credit risk since initial recognition
through information developed
internally

BKIEAEE AR ERIAR  FE
2 B B2 EE AN

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset
Bk is credit-impaired
BEBXRAZEEFEECDRE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the
Eai! debtor is in severe financial difficulty

and the Council has no realistic
prospect of recovery
EEBRXBAEBABRENY RE
# ARERBEHETAIRE

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications

EEFEHAANERES
BR—(EERRE

Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —

not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
REFEHANEHEE BRAFEHNEREE
BE-—EERRE BE—EERRE

Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired credit-impaired
BREFEPANRBEE BAFEHANEHRES
BX—EEERE BA-GEEERE

Amount is written off
SR FEH

Amount is written off
SRS

N
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21. Financial Instruments (continued) 2. €@ T E (&)
Financial risk management objectives BERREERERBER
and policies (continued) (#&)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) 1= B /7 fz B2 6 (B 7715 (48)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the TR ABKIBEEBEEIRLX
Council’s financial assets and contract assets, which are e eMEERSENEENE
subject to ECL assessment: B[R B Ao -
Gross
Internal carrying
2018 credit rating 12-month or lifetime ECL amount
12BARBREERAS
Notes fifit AEMEETHR BEFEAREHREERX REAE
HKS
Financial assets at amortised cost
REHBATENSRER
Accounts receivable 12 Lowrisk Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 7,473,981
AR TR 1B BEFEHNEEEEEA
(EEERE)
Other receivables 12 Low risk 12m ECL 2,857,769
H AR iyE 12{8 ANFEEEEE L
Debt instruments classified as financial assets at amortised cost 11 Low risk 12m ECL 39,995,060
PEREBERATECREAENERIA BB 12{8 ANEHEEEL
Bank deposits and cash 14 Low risk 12m ECL 72,094,135
BOFRERE iyE 12f8 AN FEEEEB A
Other item Hf11EH
Contract assets 13 Low risk Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 519,244
BHEE BB REFEHNEREER
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21. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Council maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and long term.

At the end of the reporting period, the Council’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities is mainly repayable
on demand or within three months from the end of respective
reporting periods. In the opinion of council members, the
difference between the carrying amounts of the financial
liabilities and the undiscounted cash flows based on the
earliest date on which the Council can be required to pay is not
significant and therefore, no further analysis is presented.

21. €T B (&)

BHREREEBRREREE
(%)

TEE T /E R

REBRBE AR S - AR
REH RMR 5 TREES
BRNTHRES RN EHG
BBEE RAREZ RAEE
KRRHRBESENR RN
L

RBERAR ARERMBENRT
BHAHERNEREHPRER
ERFH=(EAARNEE - ABKER
& TREBEREENREANER
RREERTRRSZEZER/T
BEX-AEt - OREBE—THNOIT
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HHE=ZZFT— N F=A=+—HILEFE

21. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Council
determines fair value of various financial assets.

() Fair value of the Council’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

As at 31 March 2018, the Council’'s AFS investment was
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The following table gives information about how the fair
value of this financial asset is determined (in particular, the
valuation technique and input used).

Financial assets

TRMEE

Far value as at

2. €@ I A (&)
BREREREBERBK
(#&)
TR TAENALEETE
WHEFHBEARNAEESES
BEENRNAEE
() EEEMEEL L EE
BHABEMEE -
RZBE—NF=A=+—
H  RNBA#HERERR
FEHRRZANRBEGFET
RIS EE L S BB E
BMAREE(LEZERK
HEREREABIE) -
Valuation technique
Fair value and key input
hierarchy HEFER

RABEER TEBARE

AFS equity instruments

AHHEESETA

There were no transfers into or out of Level 1.
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21. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)

(i) Fair values of financial assets that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis (but fair value disclosures are
requireq)

Except as detailed in the following table, the council
members consider that the carrying amounts of other
financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the
financial statements approximate their fair values.

2. R T A (&)

BIERSERE B EREER
(%)

EMTAHRAAEETE (&)

(i) HIFAEFE AL B E
FENRGTHEE (BE

HERELNLIEE):
BRTRAT RNBKERR
REFBEWME 2 ERMEE
MeEpmBENREERER

AEBEHEL-
2019 2018
Carrying Carrying

amount Fair value amount Fair value

RESE ARERE EEtHE ARER
HK$ & HKS % # HKS & HKS &8

Debt instruments &% T & 39,995,060 40,076,165 8,345,317 8,144,520

22.Operating Lease Commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the Council had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-

22 REHE AL

RS BR - ANBRE A HEHE
EHEANZIARKEHERR

cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: EHASEMT
2019 2018
HK$ &% HKS B ¥
Within one year — & A 12 12

In the second to fifth years inclusive

F_ZFELF (FREMEBREEN) 17 29
29 41
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22.0perating Lease Commitments
(continued)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Council for its office premises. Leases are negotiated for a term
of 5 years and rentals are fixed for 5 years. The Council has an
option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated.

22.

e EAR ()

REMENRBEREARDE A
MAENHEE -HORESHH
EVFHRFER - AREREERE
- MBS ETER A -

23.Capital Commitments 23. EAXREE
2019 2018
HK$ /&% HK$ B &
Capital expenditure for but not provided in the financial statements
in respect of the acquisition of fixed assets
HEARTEERENBRRPBENERA - 392,580
24.Related Party Transactions 20 BBERR S

All transactions related to the provision of accreditation services
to organisations in which a member of the Council, key
management personnel and the HKSAR Government may have
an interest are conducted in the normal course of business and
in accordance with the Council’s fee charging policy and fee
schedule as prescribed by the Ordinance.

Except as disclosed in (iv) and (v) below, all transactions
related to the procurement of goods and services involving
organisations in which a member of the Council, key
management personnel and the HKSAR Government may have
an interest are conducted in the normal course of business
and in accordance with the Council’s financial obligations and
normal procurement procedures.
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24.Related Party Transactions
(continued)

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Council had the
following related party transactions:

M

(i)

Honorarium paid to Council members

Q0 FAERRS (1)

BRAM SRR EAR ZHE
BN AREBUTHBARS

(i) XEREULTELD

in the capacity of Frik 2l BV B &
2019 2018
HK$ & HKS &1
Non-local Council members JEAS i 5k & 260,000 251,881

Local Council members are not remunerated.

Key management personnel
remuneration

RREFSAMKE L T
HE -

(i AEEBEAEME

2019 2018
HK$ & HK$ & &

Salaries and other emoluments 7 4 [ H 4 Bl &
Retirement scheme contributions & Kk &t &1 4 3%

6,966,170 6,617,776
36,000 18,000

7,002,170 6,635,776

Key management personnel comprise of the Executive
Director, Deputy Executive Director (Academic) and
Deputy Executive Director (Vocational and Professional
Education and Training). The above remuneration is
included in “staff costs” (see note 8).
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24.Related Party Transactions
(continued)

160

(iil) During the year ended 31 March 2019, approximately

22% (2018: 19%) of the Council’s total income
are derived from services provided to the HKSAR
Government, and approximately 11% (2018: 14%) of it
are derived from services provided to other government-
related entities. All the services are conducted in the
normal course of business and in accordance with
the Council’s fee charging policy and fee schedule as
prescribed by the Ordinance.

(iVv) Effective from 1 September 2011, the Council has entered

V)

into a lease with the HKSAR Government and rented a
vacant school premises in Siu Sai Wan Estate, Chai Wan,
Hong Kong at a charge of $1 per month as its office.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the HKSAR
Government also provided funding support of
approximately HK$400,000 (2018: HK$1,840,000) for
phase Il of the Council’s IT infrastructure development
project, HK$nil (2018: HK$197,894) for the good
practices in quality assurance project, HK$3,000,000
(2018: HK$3,000,000) for the daily maintenance and
regular upgrading of the QR, HK$423,096 (2018:
HK$1,178,142) for the quality enhancement supporting
scheme, and HK$nil (2018: HK$519,494) for the review of
accreditation criteria and standards.
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2019 2018
HK$ % ¥ HKS &%

STAFF COSTS 8 Tk 7k

Salaries ¥ & 53,095,076 53,563,191
Allowances and other staff costs %8 & E b 8 T ik 4 7,625,591 6,800,018

60,720,667 60,363,209

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 1T & [

Auditor’s remuneration #z £ Al B & 287,385 164,300
Bank charges #8717 F & & 12,286 11,147
Cleaning /5 28 450,524 439,172
Community relations #t [ 8 & 42,940 25,180
Consultancy fees & [ & 643,968 823,275
Depreciation #7 & 3,164,008 2,427,531
Incidental expenses #1837 72,902 7,450
Insurance 1R & & 298,016 288,978
Legal advisory fees % &% =) & 290,931 78,200
Membership fee & 8 & 131,351 70,670
Overseas visits and conferences /&5 55 Al & 5% 896,631 478,851
Periodicals, newspapers and books Hi Tl - & 4% & < 11,458 4,048
Photocopying &/ El1 & 27,122 27,944
Postage 5 # 28,637 29,406
Printing EN 7| & 103,010 70,975
Publicity & {5 & 339,460 453,608
Recruitment and training R 82 & 5% 3l 41,344 36,461
Rent and rates 8 & 17 £ 303,120 212,606
Repairs and maintenance # & MR & & 468,606 720,583
Securities transaction charges &+ B & & 61,393 3,010
Security RZ & 328,391 286,040
Stationery and consumables 3 B F13E ¥ & 330,290 289,051
Telephone and facsimile & & MEE & FH 373,586 541,406
Tools and equipment T B F1:& 3,292,575 2,574,975
Transport and travelling 328 & 81,632 35,583
Utilities 7Kk ~ B & 174,234 181,255
Work related research I {E4H &8 A 225,443 126,847

12,481,243 10,408,552
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Analysis of Expenditure (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 HHE=ZZFT— N F=A=+—HILEFE

2019 2018
HK$ %% HKS 75 ¥
DIRECT ACCREDITATION/CONSULTANCY COSTS H # =F 25/ 8 ik Ak
Accreditation costs &F 25 A% A 7,947,310 9,334,594
Qualifications Register costs & i 4 it 5k 7 1,987,724 1,963,199
9,935,034 11,297,793
COUNCIL MEETING AND COMMITTEE EXPENSES AR @ NEE& T H
Air passages 122 470,400 409,319
Honorarium payments i< 15 7% 260,000 251,881
Hotel accommodation & J& 1% 8 & 80,258 136,928
Working lunches and dinners 7 7% 4 8k F1 % &R 5% 168,477 168,005
Subsistence allowance Z A & 24,050 33,150
Transport and miscellaneous expenses 22 38 & 7 & 25,100 34,790
1,028,285 1,034,073
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 3 i 4258 84,165,229 83,103,627
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Terms of Reference of Committees

Terms of Reference of Committees
Qualifications and Accreditation Committee
(QAC)

Terms of Reference

@

To consider and make recommendations to the Council on
accreditation policies, criteria and procedures relevant to
the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and
Vocational Qualification’s (HKCAAVQ) statutory roles as the
Accreditation Authority under the Qualifications Framework and
those relevant to non-QF-related accreditation/quality assurance
services.

Appendix
Ff 8%

EREECRHEEE
BEFRTFEZEES

BEHE

@)

TR RFEECR R RIEFr - A
HERASRLES NAEITHE
BERERERE THEE RIEE
At MAPEBHEMARTS

To consider and make recommendations to the Council on ) MMEEBEREEFEAMAOBE K
policies and procedures for maintaining the Qualifications FFrimTERASREEZR L
Register (QR) in fulfilment of HKCAAVQ's statutory roles as the BT ERIERERERINTE BHE
QR Authority. TE B RE ©
To consider and make recommendations to the Council on (0) #ZFE KB H T HFZ RS R
policies, criteria and procedures for undertaking assessments in B ERI KRR WRFFERBA
regard to: SR EZR
- Non-local courses —  FEARHMREFZ
- Continuing Education Fund (CEF) reimbursable courses — RBEEBSESFRETZ
- Continuing Professional Development (CPD) courses — BEEEEFEMNRE
%
- Individual qualifications — AAZETMH
—  Any other relevant activities —  E AR I{E
To consider and advise the Council on any other matters o SMEMEMBEBENTZEFERT
concerning or affecting HKCAAVQ's accreditation, assessment % AT I A AR 7% 80 =5 B E 1T B
and consulting services. RRBRE
To make recommendations to the Council on such matters ) EEERLTIEZECHEDRENE
within QAC's remit as they arise. EHEMEERFERASRER
B
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Finance Committee (FC)

Terms of Reference

@)

164

To consider and recommend, for the Council’s endorsement,
the annual budget of the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation
of Academic and Vocational Qualifications (HKCAAVQ), including
any subsequent adjustments thereof.

To consider the medium and long term financial plans of
HKCAAVQ.

To keep under review the financial position of HKCAAVQ,
including its return on investment and fee charging policy, and
make recommendations to the Council as appropriate.

To receive, consider and recommend, for the Council’s approval,
the audited financial statements.

To recommend, for the Council’s approval, the appointment of
Auditors.

To monitor available cash balances and make recommendations
concerning the liquidation of investments to ensure that an
appropriate level of cash reserves is maintained.

To periodically review internal controls of HKCAAVQ as they
relate to financial and accounting matters.

To make recommendations to the Council on such matters
within FC’s remit as they arise.
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Personnel and Administration Committee
(PAC)

Terms of Reference

@)

()

To keep under review the staffing structure of the Secretariat.

To monitor human resources policies and practices of the Hong
Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational
Qualification and to recommend changes when necessary,
paying particular attention to staff development and training, the
remuneration package and matters of staff welfare.

To consider adjustments to the staff salary based on the
outcomes of the annual performance appraisal and development
review.

To keep under review the administrative efficiency of the
Secretariat.

To make recommendations to the Council on such matters
within PAC’s remit as they arise.
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cademic and

(852) 2845 9910
= info@hkcaavg.edu.hk
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